1-195 REDEVELOPMENT DISTRICT COMMISSION

MEETING OF COMMISSION
PUBLIC SESSION
SEPTEMBER 20, 2023

The I-195 Redevelopment District (the “District”) Commission (the “Commission) met on
Wednesday, September 20, 2023, in Public Session, beginning at 5:00 P.M., at District Hall,
located at 225 Dyer Street, Second Floor, Providence, Rhode Island pursuant to a notice of the
meeting to all Commissioners and public notice of the meeting as required by applicable Rhode
Island law.

The following Commissioners were present and participated throughout the meeting: Chairperson
Marc Crisafulli, Mr. Michael McNally, Mr, Robert McCann, Mr. Vincent Masino, Dr, Barrett
Bready, and ex-officio board member Mr. Joseph Mulligan.

Not present were Commissioner Ms, Sandra Smith and ex-officio board member, Ms. Liz Tanner.
Also, present were Ms. Caroline Skuncik, District Executive Director, Ms. Amber [lcisko, District
Director of Operations, Mr. Peter Erhartic, District Director of Real Estate, Ms. Sarina Conn,
District Office Manager, and Mr. Charles F. Rogers of Locke Lord, LLP, legal counsel to the
District.

1. WELCOMING REMARKS BY CHAIRPERSON CRISAFULLL

Chairperson Crisafulli called the meeting to order at 5:01 P.M. He stated the meeting scheduled
for October 18 would be canceled and that a special meeting may be scheduled for the end of
October.

2. PUBLIC COMMENT SESSION.

No members of the public signed up to speak during public comment session.

3. REVIEW AND APPROVAL OF THE MINUTES OF THE COMMISSION MEETINGS
HELD ON AUGUST 16, 2023.

Chairperson Crisafulli stated that the minutes of the August 16, 2023, meetings had been
distributed to the Commissioners and asked if there were any comments or corrections.

Thete being none, upon motion made by Dr. Bready and seconded by Mr. McCann, the following
vote was adopted:

VOTED: To approve the minutes of the Commission meetings held on August 16,
2023.




Voting in favor of the foregoing were: Chairperson Crisafulli, Mr, McCann, Dr.
Bready, Mr. McNally, and Mr. Masino,

Voting against the foregoing were: None.
4. EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR’S REPORT,

Ms. Skuncik provided an update on development projects under construction, including the first
phase of Parcel 9 and Lot 3 of Parcel 25. She noted other proposed projects are in various stages
of due diligence, and borings were underway on Parcels 14 and 15, Ms, Skuncik stated a ribbon-
cutting to celebrate the completion of the Riverwalk extension project recently took place, and
noted the Commission contributed $735,000 to the project which was led by Wexford. She also
stated that electrical upgrades were completed on the east side of the park which will allow more
flexibility for programming, and that ten trees would be planted in the park this fall.

Discussion continued on the economic impact of development in the District compared to the rest
of the city, the statistics outlined in the HR&A study, and positive feedback from visitors.

5. DISCUSSION AND VOTE TO APPROVE THE UPDATES TO THE DEVELOPMENT
PLAN FOR THE DISTRICT TO BE ADOPTED PURSUANT TO THE RHODE
ISLAND SPECIAL ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT ENABLING ACT.

Ms. Skuncik reviewed the updates since the last Commission meeting, these included: a
minimum square footage for a cultural use in the development located on Parcel 42, returning the
term “City Walk™ by request of the city, and minor clarifications and grammatical updates.

She then used a Power Point slide to review an updated design review process. She pointed out
changes to the website posting requirements and the removal of the second public comment
session during concept plan review.

Discussion continued in favor of the updated process and the resiliency updates in the draft
Development Plan. It was noted that no vote was required on the updates to the design review
process.

There being no further discussion, upon a motion made by Mr. McCann and seconded by Mr.
McNally, the following vote was adopted:

VOTED: That the Resolution regarding adoption of updates to the District Development
Plan (a copy of which Resolution had been circulated to the members and is attached hereto
as Exhibit A), be, and it hereby, is adopted and approved.

" Voting by in favor of the foregoing were: Chairperson Crisafulli, Mr. Masino, Dr. Bready,

Mr, McNally, and Mr. McCann.

Voting against the foregoing were: None.




6. PRESENTATION BY THE DISTRICT’S AUDITORS AND VOTE TO ACCEPT THE
DISTRICT’S FISCAL YEAR 2023 AUDIT.

Chairperson Crisafulli introduced Jim Wilkinson of Marcum, District’s auditors. Mr, Wilkinson
stated the firm was issuing a clean opinion and that no material weaknesses were found. He used
a Power Point presentation to present the District’s fiscal year 2023 audit, including the audited
financial statements, new GASB standards implemented in 2023, the auditor results and required
communications, and the road to issuance.

Discussion continued on the level of management cooperation and the value of the District’s
land.

There being no further discussion, upon a motion made by Mr. Masino and seconded by Mr.
McNally, the following vote was adopted:

VOTED: That the Resolution regarding fiscal year 2023 audit (a copy of which Resolution
had been circulated to the members and is attached hereto as Exhibit B), be, and it hereby, is
adopted and approved.

Voting by in favor of the foregoing were: Chairperson Crisafulli, Mr. Masino, Dr. Bready,
Mr. McNally, and Mr. McCann.

Voting against the foregoing were: None.
7. DISCUSSION AND VOTE TO APPROVE THE DISTRICT’S PROPOSED
CAPITALIZATION POLICY.
Ms. Skuncik stated the auditors requested the Commission adopt a capitalization policy. She
stated the proposed policy was developed in consultation with the auditors and the District’s

accounting firm.

There being no further discussion, upon a motion made by Mr. McCann and seconded by Mr,
Masino, the following vote was adopted:

VOTED: That the Resolution regarding the District capitalization policy (a copy of which
Resolution had been circulated to the members and is aftached hereto as Exhibit C), be, and it
hereby, is adopted and approved.

Voting by in favor of the foregoing were: Chairperson Crisafulli, Mr. Masino, Dr. Bready,
Mr. McNally, and Mr. McCann.

Voting against the foregoing were: None.



8. EXECUTIVE SESSION

Chairperson Crisafulli statcd that, pursuant to the notice of the meeting, the Commission would
go into Executive Session for discussion regarding the purchase, sale, exchange, lease, or value
of real property that would have a detrimental effect on the negotiating position of the

.

Commission with the other parties if discussed in open session.

Accordingly, upon motion duly made by Dr. Bready and seconded by Mr. Masino the following
vote was adopted:

VOTED: To go into Closed Session, pursuant to the Open Meetings Act, Rhode
fsland General Laws Section 42-46-5 {the Open Meetings Law) and 42-64.14.6(1)
(the 1-195 Act), in order to consider the purchase, sale, exchange, lease or value of
District real estate.

Voting by in favor of the foregoing were: Chairperson Crisafulli, Dr. Bready, Mr.
McCann, Mr. McNally, and Mr. Masino.

Voting against the foregoing were: None.
Commissioners and District staff then proceeded to enter into Closed Session at 5:19 P.M.
The Public Session was reconvened at 5:59 P.M.
Chairperson Crisafulli reported that discussion in the Bxecutive Session was confined to review
and discussion of proposals regarding the purchase and sale of District real estate and no votes

were taken. Additionally, the Commission voted to end the Executive Session, maintain the
Executive Session minutes, and reconvene the Public Session.

| Upon motion duly made by Mr. McCann and seconded by Mr. Masino, the following vote was
| adopted:

| VOTED: That pursuant to Rhode Jsland General Laws Section 42-46-5(a), the Open
: ¢ p

l Meetings Act, the minutes of the Closed Session shall not be made available to the

| public, except as to the portions of such minutes as the Commission ratifies and

| reports in Public Session of the meeting until disclosure would no longer jeopardize

the Commission’s negotiating positions.

Voting in favor of the forcgoing were: Chairperson Crisafulli, Mr. Masino, Mr.
| MecCann, Mr. McNally, and Dr. Bready.

| Voting against the foregoing were: None.

9. VOTE TO ADJOURN.

‘ There being no further discussion, upon motion made by Mr. Masino and seconded by Mr.

‘ 4
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MeNally the following vote was adopted:

VOTED: That the meeting be adjourned.

Voting by in favor of the foregoing were: Chairperson Crisafulli, Mr. McCann, Dr.

Bready, Mr. McNally, and Mr. Masino.

Voting against the foregoing were: None.

The meeting was adjourned at 6:00 P.M.

Crisafulli, Chai

Marc person




EXHIBIT A

1-195 REDEVELOPMENT DISTRICT

RESOLUTION REGARDING ADOPTION OF UPDATES TO DEVELOPMENT PLAN

WHEREAS:

WHEREAS:

WHEREAS:

WHEREAS:

WHEREAS:

WHEREAS:

WHEREAS,

September 20, 2023

The I-195 Redevelopment District (the “District™) was created and exists as a public
corporation, governmental agency and public instrumentality of the State of Rhode

“Island and Providence Plantations under Chapter 64.14 of Title 42 of the General

Laws of Rhode Island (the “Act™); and

The Act authorizes the District, acting through its Commission (the “Commission™)
to oversee, plan, implement and administer the development of areas within the so-
called I-195 Redevelopment District (the “I-195 District™); and

Pursuant to the Act, the property owned by the District has been designated as a
special economic development district as contemplated by Chapter 24.6 of Title 45
of the General Laws of Rhode Island (the “Special Economic Development District

Enabling Act”); and

Pursuant to the Special Economic Development District Enabling Act, the
Commission is obligated to adopt, after conducting a public hearing, a plan of
development to regulate and restrict the erection, construction, reconstruction,
alteration, repair or use of buildings, structures or land within the District; and

In 2020, the Commission prepared and adopted the 1-195 Redevelopment District
Development Plan (the *“2020 Development Plan™) in accordance with the
requirements of the Special Economic Development District Enabling Act; and

The Commission has determined that the 2020 Development Plan should be
updated, revised and clarified in certain respects; and

On August 16, 2023, the Commission conducted a public hearing with respect to
an updated, revised and clarified Development Plan (the “2023 Development
Plan?), notice of which public hearing was (i) given to all owners of real property
within the bounds of the I-195 District and within two hundred fect (200 of the
petimeter thereof by registered or certified mail at least seven (7) days before the
date of the hearing and (ii) published in the Providence Journal on July 26 and
August 2 and 9, 2023, as required by the Special Economic Development District
Enabling Act; and

WHEREAS: The District Ackné%iedges the role of the Rhode Island State Historic Preservation

Officer (the “RISHPO™) under the Act and has submitted a draft of the 2023




Development Plan to the RISHPO for review and has incorporated into the 2023
Development Plan certain recommendations of the RISHPO.

NOW, THEREFORE, acting by and through its Commissioners, the District hereby resolves as
follows:

RESOLVED: Pursuant to the Special Economic Development District Enabling Act, the District
does hereby adopt, effective as September 20, 2023, the I-195 Redevelopment
District Development Plan dated September 20, 2023, a copy of which is attached
hereto as Exhibit A, as the plan of development for all projects in the 1-195 District.




Exhibit A

See [-195 Redevelopment District Development Plan dated September 20, 2023 attached.
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AUTHORITY AND PROCESS




1-195 Redevelopment District

1.1 Creation of the District, Commission,
and Plan of Development

1. Special Economic Development District (“District")

Pursuant to R.I. Gen. Laws §42-64.14-5(b) and R.l. Gen. Laws
§45-24.6-4 (the "SED Act") any property owned by the 1-195
Redevelopment District is designated as a special economic
development district (referred to hereinafter as the “District").
Accordingly, only land now or formerly owned by the 1-195
Redevelopment District is within the District (as its boundaries
may be adjusted by the I-195 Redevelopment District Commis-
sion (the "Commission")). No approval under this Development
Plan for any development shall have any legal effect unless
the Commission, in its sole discretion, determines to sell or
ground lease land within the District to any such party on terms
acceptable to the Commission.

2. Adoption of Development Plan

Pursuant to the SED Act, the Commission adopts the following
regulations as its plan of development for the District (the "De-
velopment Plan") in accordance with the SED Act. The Develop-
ment Plan shall be applicable to all construction in the District.
In cases where the Development Plan does not provide nec-
essary regulation and guidance, the City of Providence Zoning
Ordinance shall be applied. Nothing in this Development Plan
shall otherwise be construed to prevent the continuance of any
building or improvement constructed prior to the adoption of
the Development Plan.

3. Regulation of Projects Following Completion

Following completion of a project on a parcel of land in the Dis-
trict (whether constructed under the Development Plan or prior
to the adoption of the Development Plan), the subsequent use

and alteration, including without limitation, its signage, shall be
subject to the provisions of the Development Plan.

Development Plan
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1. The Commission shall, at all times, further the purposes and
goals of the District.

a.

All votes and determinations made by the Commission
shall be based an a series of findings made by the Com-
mission.

Any final decision by the Commission will be based on a
determination whether the overall effect of any proposal
or a grant of any requested relief will further the goals and
purposes of the District.

2. The purposes of the District are to:

a.

Create a consolidated state-local-private sector partner-
ship to plan, implement, administer, and oversee expedit-
ed redevelopment of the District.

Authorize, provide for, and facilitate the consolidated and
expedited exercise of development and redevelopment
powers existing at the state and local levels as an instru-
mentality of the state with development tools greater than
that of municipalities.

Coordinate the development of education and enjoyment
opportunities for the welfare of the general public; Protect
existing development projects presently or formerly
within the District from proposed uses and structures that
may adversely affect the value and operations of such
projects.

Promote the commercial and economic development

of the District such that the District attracts appropriate
business, industry, tourism, trade, resources, and invest-
ment.

Development Plan
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3. The goals of the District are to:

a.

Support the knowledge economy of the State of Rhode
Island.

Develop new economic opportunities for the State of
Rhode Island.

Enable the design and build out of an urban mixed-use
neighborhood that complements Providence's walkable
downtown.

Expand the downtown's density along and adjacent to the
1-95 corridor to maximize District land values sufficient to
support the repayment of bonds issued in the creation of
the District.

Facilitate both direct and indirect support of the State of
Rhode Island's economy more generally.

To foster economic development in the District and be-
yond and create an environment that encourages high-val-
ue users to build well-designed structures that enhance
the value of surrounding neighborhoods and augment the
sense of place.



I-195 Redevelopment District

1.3 Definitions

Abutters

Abutting property shall mean property within 200" of the perti-
nent property line.

Deviation

A Deviation is a Waiver.

Waiver

A Waiver is a R.l. Gen. Laws §45-24.6-8 Deviation which is a
specific form of relief that may be granted where the enforce-
ment of the regulations relating to setbacks, build-to lines, and
other area and dimensional restrictions would preclude the
full enjoyment by the owner of a permitted use and amount

to more than a mere inconvenience. For the purposes of the
application of the provisions of Section 2, which authorizes
the granting of Waivers from the requirements thereof, such
requirements shall be treated for all purposes as dimensional
restrictions under R.I. Gen. Laws §45-24.6-8.

Variance

A specific form of relief that may be granted pursuant to R.l
Gen. Laws §45-24.6-8 where, owing to special conditions,
enforcement of the regulations would result in unnecessary
hardship, where the variance will not be contrary to the public
interest, and the spirit of the plan will be observed, and sub-
stantial justice done.

Concept Plan

The Concept Plan is comprised of a set of drawings that fully
describe the spatial, physical, material, and expressive aspects
of the development proposal.

Final Plan

The Final Plan is comprised of a set of drawings that are equiv-
alent to the architectural and site design/landscape design
components of a Design Development drawing set. The Final
Plan establishes and fixes the design of the project in the eyes
of the Commissian, District Staff, and the general public.

Certificate of Approval

The Certificate of Final Plan Approval issued by the Commis-
sion-pursuant-to-Section-1.5:8 approving-an.application for
construction, erection, alteration, demolition, or use of a struc-
ture or land within the District, and pursuant to which a building
permit may be issued.

Certificate of Rejection

The document issued by the Commission rejecting an applica-
tion for construction, erection, alteration, demolition, or use of
a structure or land within the District.

Certificate of Compliance

The document issued by the Commission certifying that a
development project has complied with all of the Commission’s
conditions and approvals and therefore the project is eligible
for a Certificate of Occupancy.

. Special Exceptions

Uses or other modifications of the requirements of this De-
velopment Plan specifically authorized to be permitted by the
Commission as provided for in the SED act.

. Temporary Use Permit

A permit that allows a use for a specified period of time but
does not confer any property right or use right that runs with
the land. Temporary Use Permits may be granted by the
Executive Director. Temporary Use Permits may be revoked by
the Executive Director or the Commission at any time with or
without cause.

. Terms not Specifically Defined Herein

Terms not expressly defined herein shall have their plain and
ordinary meaning except to the extent that they are expressly
defined within the City of Providence Zoning Ordinance as
determined by the Executive Director or Commission to be
applicable.

Development Plan



I-195 Redevelopment District

dministration

1. Delegated Authority

The Commission may delegate portions of the Commission's
authority to the Executive Director or the Executive Director's
subordinates so long as such delegation and any actions taken
thereunder further the purposes and goals of the District.
Otherwise, no action by any officer or agent of the Commission
is binding upon the Commission unless and until the Commis-
sion either ratifies or has previously authorized the action at a
public meeting.

2. State Historic Preservation Officer

The Commission recognizes the authority of State Historic
Preservation Officer (SHPO) as granted and limited pursuant
to the 2000 Memorandum of Agreement by and between the
Advisory Council on Historic Preservation, the Federal Highway
Administration, and the Rhode Island State Historic Preserva-
tion Officer, with the Rhode Island Department of Transporta-
tion, John H. Chafee Blackstone River Valley National Heritage
Corridor Commission, and City of Providence concurrent, as
may be amended from time to time.

3. Stakeholders

At the discretion of the Executive Director and the Commission
Chairperson, the District may make use of Stakeholders such
as the Providence Planning Department, the Rhode Island De-
partment of Transportation, or any other such public agencies
or nonprofit or community Stakeholders as may have knowl-
edge or insight that could support the purposes and goals of
the District.

Development Plan
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Grants of Development Rights Generally

The Commission is empowered to grant, by way of a simple
majority vote at a public meeting, any such planning and zon-
ing Certificates of Approval or Rejection or other relief as may
fall under the Commission's powers which include, but are not
limited to, powers and authority as may be expressly set forth
or implied by other state law or regulation, so long as any such
requested relief furthers the purposes and goals of the District
as set forth in Section 1.2, Purposes and Goals. The Commis-
sion may condition any relief granted in any manner consistent
with the District's Purposes and Goals.

Public Hearings

Pursuant to R.l. Gen. Laws §45-24.6-8(b), the Commission
shall hold a hearing on any application for relief within a rea-
sonable time and give (or cause to be given) public notice and
due notice of the hearing to the parties in interest and property
owners within two hundred feet (200") of the affected property.
At any hearing any party may appear in person or by agent or
attorney.

2. Comment during public hearings will be limited in topic to
the particular presentation.

b. Inthe sole discretion of the Commission Chairperson,
the Commission may set a universal limit on the length
of time that each member of the public may use for their
comment.

Specific Forms of Relief

Pursuant to R.I. Gen. Laws §45-24.6-8, the Commission, with
or without conditions, may grant the following forms of relief
upon conclusion of a noticed public hearing regarding said
requested relief.

a. Special Exception. The Commission may issue a Special
Exception if the Commission finds that the Special Excep-
tion may be granted in furtherance of the Purposes and
Goals of the District and where the use granted by Special
Exception is reasonably necessary for the convenience
or welfare of the public and does not substantially or
permanently injure the value of neighbaring property. The
Commission may grant the following Special Exceptions:

i Surface Parking (see Section 2.4.B.6.€)

b, Variances: Any useor heightVariance shall.only be grant-
ed by Amendment of the Development Plan pursuant to
R.l. Gen. Laws §45-24.6-6(c). Dimensional relief (other
than specifically permitted by issuance of a Waiver under
this Development Plan) shall be treated as a Variance for
purposes of this Development Plan and such Variances

pproval and Permitting Process

may be granted where, owing to special conditions, en-
forcement of the requlations would result in unnecessary
hardship, where the Variance will not be contrary to the
public interest, and the spirit of the plan will be observed
and substantial justice done because the granting of such
Variance is supported by the purposes and goals of the
District.

o Waivers: Waivers specifically authorized in this Develop-
ment Plan may be granted as provided in R.I. Gen. Laws
§45-24.6-8 and in accordance with the definition of Waiv-
er set forth herein (Section 1.3.3).

d. Amendment of the Development Plan: Pursuant to R.1.
Gen. Laws §45-24.6-6(c), the Plan of Development may be
amended only after a public hearing before the Commis-
sion, at which all interested parties have an opportunity to
be heard. Notice of the time, place, nature, and purpose
of the public hearing shall be given to all owners of real
property within the bounds of the District and within two
hundred feet (200") of the perimeter thereof, by registered
or certified mail at least seven (7) days before the date of
the hearing, and by publication of notice in a newspaper
of general circulation within the municipality at least once
each week for three (3) successive weeks prior to the
date of the hearing.

4. Administrative Review

The Executive Director is hereby empowered to make the fol-
lowing administrative determinations:

a. Whether or not any proposal triggers a requirement for
relief from the Commission, including but not limited to:

i. Special Exceptions

ii. Variances

iii. Waivers

iv. Temporary Use Permits

v. Amendment of the Development Plan
vi. Signage

The grant or denial of a Temporary Use Permit.

What materials and information are necessary for the
Commission to review any proposal or requested relief,
including but not limited to:

i, What materials and information are necessary for
application for Concept Plan approval.

ii. What materials and information are necessary for
application for Final Plan approval.

d. Whether or not to issue a Request for Proposal (RFP), Re-
quest for Qualifications (RFQ), or any other such compet-
itive bidding procedure, and what responses, if any, are in
fact responsive to the minimum requirements thereof.

Development Plan



e. An administrative grant of a Certificate of Approval of
proposed signage.

Plan Approvals

The Commission shall review plans at a concept level, and
following approval of a Concept Plan, the applicant may submit
a Final Plan which shall be sufficient in detail to enable the
Commission to conduct a comprehensive design review of the
project. With respect to each of the plan filings, the Commis-
sion may take action on the applicable plan as detailed below.
The Commission has established guidelines with the criteria
required to be observed in the preparation and submission of
the applicable plan. In each case the plan will be reviewed at
one or more public meeting(s) at which the public will have the
opportunity to comment.

Concept Plan Review

The Commission will review complete Concept Plan applica-
tions at one or more public meeting(s). Such public meeting (s)
shall include the opportunity for public comment. The Commis-
sion may vote on the following actions and require any of the
following, with any conditions the Commission may deem fit:

a. Reject: The Commission may deny the application with or
without prejudice and issue a Certificate of Rejection.

b. Remand: The Commission may require the applicant to
undergo further administrative review.

c. Approve: The Commission may approve the Concept
Plan, with or without conditions, and issue a Concept Plan
Approval. An approval of a Concept Plan shall include a
grant of any of the following relief, as may be necessary
and as requested at the time of Concept Plan application:

i.  Amendment of the Development Plan
ii. Special Exception(s)

iii. Waiver(s)

iv. Variance(s)

Final Plan Review

The Commission will review complete Final Plan applications
at one or more public meeting(s). Such public meeting(s) shall
include the opportunity for public comment. At the conclusion
of that public meeting(s), the Commission may vote on the
following actions and require any of the following, with any
conditions the Commission may deem fit:

a. Reject: The Commission may deny the application with or
without prejudice and issue a Certificate of Rejection.

b. Remand: The Commission may require the applicant to
undergo further administrative review or to reapply for
Concept Plan approval or Final Plan approval.

Development Plan
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c. Approval: The Commission may approve the Final Plan
with or without conditions. The Final Plan approval shall
include any of the following, as may be necessary and as
requested at the time of Final Plan application:

i.  Special Exception(s)
ii. Waiver(s)
iii. Variance(s)

d. Pursuant to the MOA referenced in Section 1.4.2., the
SHPO must review the Final Plan before approval can be
granted.

Certificate of Final Plan Approval

Once Final Plan approval has been granted, the applicant must
submit construction documents and a construction manage-
ment plan satisfactory to the Executive Director. The Commis-
sion shall then issue a Certificate of Final Plan Approval for the
project documenting the special features of the approved Final
Plan and containing such conditions as determined by the
Commission.

Certificate of Compliance

Upon proof that the Applicant has built in accordance with
the terms and conditions of the Certificate of Approval, the
Commission shall issue a Certificate of Compliance. Such
certificate may contain conditions.

Certificate of Occupancy

No Certificate of Occupancy may be issued prior to the Com-
mission issuing a Certificate of Compliance. Once a Certificate
of Occupancy is issued, the property shall thereafter continue
to be subject to the terms of the Development Plan.



1-195 Redevelopment District

1.6 Severability

If any clause, sentence, paragraph, section, or part of these regu-
lations shall be judged by any court of competent jurisdiction to

be invalid, such judgment shall not affect, impair or invalidate the
remainder thereof, but it shall be confined in its operation of the
clause, sentence, paragraph, section, or part directly involved in the
controversy in which that judgment shall have been rendered.

Development Plan



1-195 Redevelopment District

PAGE INTENTIONALLY BLANK

eeeeeeeeeeeeee






SAYVANVLS LNJNdO013IAIA

0¢




1-195 Redevelopment District

2.1

istricts,

Corridors

A. DISTRICTS

In order to carry out the purpose and intent of this Development
Plan, the land governed by this Development Plan is divided into the
following Districts:

1. West Side Highway District

a.

h.

The West Side Highway District includes Parcel 30, Parcel
34, Parcel 35, Parcel 37, and Parcel 41.

The Development Plan aims to foster development in the
West Side Highway District that enhances the economic
vitality of Providence while promoting pedestrian activity
at street level to reconnect Downtown and the Jewelry
District. The West Side Highway District allows the great-
est density in order to promote commercial and economic
development that supparts the knowledge economy of
the State of Rhode Island and extends Providence's down-
town density to maximize District land values.

2. West Side Riverfront District

a.

The West Side Riverfront District includes Parcel 14, Par-
cel 15, Parcel 22 & 25 Lot 1, Parcel 22 Lot 2, Parcel 22 Lot
5, Parcel 22 & 25 Lot 4, Parcel 25 Lot 3, Parcel 27, Parcel
28, and Parcel 42.

The Development Plan aims to foster development in the
West Side Riverfront District that provides a vibrant mix of
uses to enhance the economic vitality of Providence and
activate the park. Development will be organized around
a series of new pedestrian and bicycle connections and
linked open spaces that connect Downtown and the Jew-
elry District to each other and to the Providence riverfront.
Uses have been restricted on some parcels in the West
Side Riverfront District in order to promate commercial
and economic development that supports the knowledge
economy of the State of Rhode Island.

3. East Side District

a.

b.

The East Side District includes Parcel 1A, Parcel 2, Parcel
5, Parcel 6, Parcel 8, Parcel 8A,and Lots 1 &2 of Parcel 9.
The Development Plan aims to foster developmentin the
East Side District that is pedestrian-friendly and mixed-
use, activates the park, and creates a continuous urban
fabric linking the Fox Point neighborhood to the Provi-
dence River.

a.

b.

Street Hierarchy, and View

4. Open Space District

The Open Space District includes 195 District Park (Par-
cels P4 and P2) and Comley Square (Parcel P3).

The Development Plan aims to support the active use of
the 1-195 Redevelopment District parks by allowing uses
that encourage activation and integrate the parks into the
broader network of open space and cultural resources in
Providence and Rhode Island.

Development Plan
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B. DEVELOPMENT PLAN MAP West Side Highway District

The location and boundaries of land governed by this Development West Side Riverfront District
Plan are set forth in the Development Plan Map, as periodically
amended. The Development Plan Map is incorporated into, and
made an integral part of, this Development Plan. The I-195 Redevel- ==« Open Space District
opment District Executive Director is responsible for updating the

Development Plan Map when it is amended by the Commission and

shall provide such amended maps publicly on the District website.

East Side District

Development Plan
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C. STREET HIERARCHY

1.

Primary Streets include: South Main Street, South Water Street,
Wickenden Street, Dyer Street, Dorrance Street, Richmond
Street, Ship Street, Chestnut Street, and Clifford Street.

Secondary Streets include: James Street, Dollar Street, Pike
Street, Tockwotten Street, Bessie Way, Alves Way, Peck Street,
Claverick Street, Hoppin Street, South Street, East Franklin
Street, Bassett Street, Friendship Street, and Pine Street.

City Walk is a pedestrian and bicycle priority corridor connect-
ing neighborhoods from Roger Williams Park to India Point
Park runs through the District. In the District, it follows Clifford
Street from 1-95 to Richmond Street, briefly running along
Richmand Street to Elbow Street, then connecting through the
park to the comer of South Water Street and Wickenden Street,
where it branches, following South Water Street directly to
India Point Park; and following a pathway between Parcel 9-and
1-195 to the India Point Park overpass.

= Primary streets

weenme Secondary streets

¢--2»  City Walk

Development Plan
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D. VIEW CORRIDORS

View corridors are hereby established along Peck Street, Dorrance

Street, and Ship Street to preserve important views to and from the

Providence River. The three view corridors shall be uninterrupted 1.

physical extensions of the existing right-of-way width and geometry

of said streets, and extend to the riverfront edge, as indicated in the
map above. No permanant structures can be located such that they

obstruct the view corridors. The following are allowed as of right
within the view corridors:

*  Temporary structures

*  Public art

+  Columns

* Canopies and Awnings
Trees

* Landscaping or structures that are 3 feet or less

Development Plan
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The view corridor streets are as follows:

Peck Street, southeast from its intersection with Dyer Street to
the Providence River

Dorrance Street, southeast from its intersection with Dyer
Street to the Providence River

Ship Street, northeast from its intersection with Dyer Street to
the Providence River

19
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A. VARIANCES

Variances for any use not permitted in this section shall not be
granted without an Amendment to the Development Plan. The
Commission shall, however, have the authority to determine that a
use not specifically listed may be permitted upon the Commission's
determination that the proposed use is similar to one or more of the
uses otherwise permitted and is consistent with the purposes and
goals of the District and shall have no greater impact on Abutters
than impacts comparable to an allowed use.

B. ALLOWED USES

1. The following uses are allowed in the West Side Highway, West
Side Riverfront, and East Side Districts:

Office

+ Lab/Research and Development

+  Hotel/Bed and Breakfast

+  Educational Institution/Health Care Institution/Govern-
ment

+  Retall

. Restaurant/Bar/Specialty Food Service
Brewery/Distillery/Winery

+  Artisan Industrial/Industrial Design/Manufacturing uses
with an accessory retail component, such as apparel
manufacturing, millworking, food processing, etc.

+  Live Entertainment Venue, provided that appropriate noise
abatement is in place to minimize impacts on abutters

+  Professional Services

- Personal Services

+ Day Care
Medical/Dental Office or Services

+  Public Art/Arts Gallery/Arts Studio

+  Live/Work Space combining residential with commercial,
retail, or artisan industrial uses
Community Center/Cultural Facility

«  Multifamily Residential (rental and/or condominium) is
allowed on all parcels except Parcel 22 & 25 Lot 1, Parcel
22 Lot 2, Parcel 25 Lot 3, Parcel 22 & 25 Lot 4, Parcel 22
Lot 5, and Parcel 27.

Mixed-use buildings are allowed and are strongly encouraged.

2. The following uses are allowed in the Open Space District:

+ Restaurant/Bar/Specialty Food Service
Brewery/Distillery/Winery

+ Live Entertainment Venue
Public Art/Arts Gallery/Arts Studio

+  Community Center/Cultural Facility
Public amenities such as bathrooms

+  Ancillary uses to support park operations and
maintenance

C. ALLOWED TEMPORARY/SEASONAL USES

1. The Executive Director and Commission Chairperson have the
authority to grant temporary use permits for uses including, but
not limited to, the following:

*  Qutdoor Markets

«  Outdoor Entertainment and Events

+  Non-permanent Food and Beverage Establishments,
including alcohol sales. All food and beverage (including
alcohol) establishments shall be properly licensed by all
applicable departments of the City of Providence and
State of Rhode Island (including the Rhode Island Depart-
ment of Health).

+  Temporary Public Art Installations

2. Outdoor seating for restaurant/bar/food service/brewery/
distillery/winery is allowed and does not require a permit if it is
located on private property. Outdoor seating that encroaches
into the public right-of-way is subject to the authority of the City
of Providence.

D. GROUND FLOOR USES

Programming the ground floor of a building with active uses en-
courages walking and makes a neighborhood more vibrant. Active
ground floor uses are encouraged to the maximum extent feasible,
especially along Primary Streets.

1. A portion of the ground floor along Primary Streets must be
occupied with at least one of the following active uses:

+  Retall

- Restaurant/Bar/Specialty Food Service
Brewery/Distillery/Winery

«  Artisan Industrial/Industrial Design/Manufacturing uses
with an accessory retail component

+ Live Entertainment Venue

+  Professional Services

= Personal Services
Day Care

«  Public Art/Arts Gallery/Arts Studio
Live/Wark Space combining residential with commercial,
retail, or artisan industrial uses

«  Community Center/Cultural Facility

2. Semi-active accessory uses, such as lobbies and common ar-
eas associated with office or residential uses, are also allowed.

3. Residential uses with individual unit entrances from the street
are allowed on Secondary Streets, and on Primary Streets by
Waiver. Live/work residential uses with individual unit en-
trances from the street are allowed on Primary and Secondary
Streets.

Development Plan



4. Structured parking (and surface parking if a Special Exception
is issued) shall be permitted as an accessary use. Parking
is prohibited on the ground floor of a building within 20" of a
Primary Street (Figure 2.4-1 on page 24).

E. SPECIAL EXCEPTION

Surface parking lots are prohibited except by Special Exception,
which may be granted by a vote of the Commission. Surface park-
ing lots are also permitted if constructed and maintained by the
Commission.

F. PROHIBITED USES
The following uses are expressly prohibited in all Districts:

Billboard/Off-premise Advertising

Halfway House

Heavy Industrial uses

Landfill/Incinerator/Waste Facility

Prison/Correctional Institution/Detention Center

Principal uses that require enclosed buildings that are not

inhabited by people and have no windows

Drive-through Establishments

8. Automobhile Dealerships or Service, Car Wash, Gas
Station, Vehicle Rental (as principal use)

9. Parking is prohibited in the Open Space District with the
exception of temporary event-related vehicles

10. Wholesale, Distribution, Warehouse, Self-storage, Open Air

Storage

oSN =

=

The following uses, except related accessory uses such as lobbies,
vertical circulation and loading, are prohibited below the Ground
Floor Design Flood Elevation (DFE-1):

Any Residential Use

*  Medical / Dental Offices or Services

*  Educational Institution / Health Care Institution /
Government

+ Day Care

Development Plan
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]

Dimensional Standard

Table 2.3-1: West Side Highway West Side Riverfront i S
Dimensional Standards District District Fast Side DIstiict Open Space DA
i : 3 15’ for non-residential uses

Minimum First Story Height 12' for residential uses None
Mlmm'.'lm and Matimun Build- Parcels regulated individually; see Table 2.3-2 1 story
ing Height
Primary Street and Secondary Build-to zane of 0' to 8', with minimum build-to percentage of 80% (Figure

; s None
Street Build-to-line 2.3-1)
Interior Side Build-to-line None
Rear Setback None

8' BUILD-TO-
ZONE
_ 8'BUILD-TO- ’
“._ ZONE =
= " 20% MAX|

-

20% MAX.

80% =

Figure 2.3-1

Table 2.3-2: Minimum and Maximum Building Height

1. Density variances for minimum and maximum height regu-
lations may only be granted through an Amendment to the
Development Plan. All other regulations in this section can be
waived by a vote of the Commission.

2. Proposals for Parcel 42 will be eligible for a density bonus
allowing up to 166.5' in building height if they include at least
20,000 gross square feet of Cultural or Civic Uses (as defined
in Appendix 4.1 Glossary of Definitions), at least 8,000 of which
must be on the ground floor. See Section 3 Parcel Specifica-
tions for additional detail.

3. Build-to line requirements may be waived for the creation of
courtyards, wider sidewalks, open space, vertical and horizon-
tal circulation elements to reach the Ground Floor Design Flood
Elevation (DFE-1), and/or outdoor seating in locations that
contribute to public parks, City Walk, or other active pedestrian
corridors.

Parcel Min. Height Max. Height
1A 1 story 6 stories
2 2 stories 6 stories
5 2 stories 6 stories
6 2 stories 6 stories
8 2 stories 6 stories
8A 2 stories 130'
9, Lots1&2 2 stories 6 stories
14 3 stories 130’
15 1 story 130
22/25, Lots 1-5 3 stories 130’
27 3 stories 160'
28 3 stories 160"
30 6 stories 345’
34 6 stories 345
35 6 stories 345'
37 6 stories 345
41 6 stories 345'
24 SEnes 1616?59 \E?{c:g:‘;us
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BUILDING AND STORY HEIGHT RULES OF MEASURE-
MENT

1.

For a vacant parcel of land, building height shall be measured
from the average existing-grade elevation where the foun-
dation of the structure is proposed or from the Ground Floor
Design Flood Elevation (DFE-1), whichever is higher. Building
height shall be measured to the top of the highest paint of the
proposed roof or structure. This distance shall exclude spires,
chimneys, flag poles, and the like, as described in item 2 (Fig-
ure 2.3-2).

The following structures or parts thereof are exempt from max-
imum height limitations, unless otherwise limited by any height
restriction imposed by any airport authority or other similar
federal, state, or local authority:

a. Building appurtenances such as chimneys, parapet
walls, skylights, steeples, flag poles, smokestacks,
cooling towers, elevator bulkheads, fire towers, monu-
ments, water towers, stacks, stage towers; scenery lofts,
tanks, ornamental towers and spires; rooftop accessory
structures; recreational facilities; necessary mechanical
appurtenances; or penthouses to house mechanical
appurtenances.

b.  Building appurtenances shall be eligible for this exemp-
tion only if they meet the following standards:

i.  The footprint of all building appurtenances shall
not exceed 50% of the total floor area of the roof.

ii. All mechanical appurtenances or penthouses to
house mechanical appurtenances roof equipment
shall be set back from the edge of the roof a
minimum distance of one foot for every two feet by
which the equipment extends above the roof.

A story is that portion of a building between the upper surface
of any floor and the upper surface of the floor next above,
including any portion of a building used for human occupancy
between the topmost floor and the roof. A basement is count-
ed as a story, but a cellar is not (Figure 2.3-3).

The first story must meet the relevant minimum first story
height (15' for non-residential uses or 12" for residential uses)
for at least 75% of the frontage on Primary Streets.

Development Plan
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2.4 Parking and Loading

Waivers to the standards in this section may be approved by a vote
of the Commission, unless otherwise indicated.

A. OFF-STREET VEHICLE PARKING REQUIREMENTS

There are no minimum vehicle parking requirements in any District.
B. OFF-STREET VEHICLE PARKING DESIGN STANDARDS

The following standards apply to all off-street parking and parking
structures constructed in any District.

1. Electric vehicle charging stations shall be installed in a mini-
mum of 10% of total parking spaces provided.

2. Access to surface parking and parking structures from Primary
Streets is prohibited, with the following exceptions:

a. When the parcel has no frontage on any Secondary
Streets.

b. When supported by evidence indicating impracticality due
to site conditions.

3. Where curb cuts are allowed, the following standards apply
(Figure 2.4-1):

a. The maximum width of a one-lane curb cut and drive-
way for access to parking lots and parking structures is
12 feet. The minimum width of a two-lane curb cut and
driveway for access to parking lots and parking structures
is 20 feet and the maximum width is 24 feet.

b. The minimum linear distance between any two curb cuts,
including across multiple lots, is 50 feet (Figure 2.4-1).

c. Eachlotis limited to one curb cut per street frontage.

Lots with more than 200 feet of frontage are allowed one
additional curb cut every 200 feet (Figure 2.4-1).

d.  All curb cuts require approval of the City of Providence
Department of Public Works.

Ground-floor parking structures shall be physically separated
from Primary Streets by a linear distance of at least 20 feet
(Figure 2.4-1).

Parking structures shall be designed to minimize their visual
impact on the public realm:

a. Garage facades facing both Primary and Secondary
Streets must be screened with architectural or landscape
elements that provide texture and dimensionality.

b. Garage structures and screening shall be designed to
mask the visibility of vehicle headlights from the street
and abutting buildings.

c. Parking structure access ramps shall not be exposed on
Primary Street facades.

Surface parking is strongly discouraged, and is permitted only
as a Special Exception by vote of the Commission and subject
to the following conditions:

a. Surface parking access is permitted only along Secondary
Streets.

b. Hydraulic lifts or other mechanical stackers may not be
used in surface parking lots.

c. The Commission may impose a time limit on the Special
Exception that permits surface parking.

d. Surface parking that is granted a Special Exception for
a duration of one year or more are required fo utilize

24" MAX. 12' MAX.

200" MIN. 12' MAX.

50' MIN.

20' MIN.
—

? —

Figure 2.4-1
Parking lot curb cuts, driveway, and setback requirements

[

<[ Active
"Uses
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low-impact-development practices consistent with City of
Providence and state laws to treat and discharge storm-
water, and shall be separated from the public right-of-way
by a landscaped strip that adheres to the following design
standards (Figure 2.4-2):

i.  The landscape strip shall run the full length of the
surface parking perimeter along the right-of-way,
excluding curb cuts.

ii. The landscape strip shall be a minimum of ten feet
in depth. There shall be a minimum linear distance
of six inches between wheel stops or curbs and the
landscape strip to accommodate vehicle bumper
overhang, which is not included in the minimum
ten-foot calculation.

iii. One shade tree shall be planted for every 25 feet of
landscape strip length, spaced linearly.

iv. The landscape strip shall also be planted over a
minimum of 60% of its length with shrubs, peren-
nials, native grasses, and other planting types that
screen a minimum of three feet in height.

v. The use of stormwater management techniques
such as rain gardens and bioswales is encouraged
in landscape strips. Landscaped areas should be
designed for the absorption of stormwater.

The foregoing limitations on surface parking shall not be appli-
cable to any surface parking developed by the Commission.

i
s
f5
5 -
3'-4' fence / k‘\/-' “1 <
Jorwall ; e 4
¥ ¢
3' MIN.
vegetation
B'MIN, ., ot
10'MIN. * -
Figure 2.4-2
Surface parking landscape buffer
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7. Developments with 20 or more off-street vehicular parking
spaces must:

a. Lease parking spaces in an "unbundled” fashion (mean-
ing that parking is leased and priced independently from
living and working spaces, rather than being bundled into
core lease agreements);

b.  Allow for shared use by multiple uses and/or develop-
ments;

c. Be publicly accessible with clear wayfinding, signage, and
transparent market rate daily and hourly parking pricing;
and

d.  Have infrastructure set up to allow for access card and
payment.

C. OFF-STREET BICYCLE PARKING REQUIREMENTS

Table 2.4-1 on page 26details the minimum bicycle parking
spaces required by use in each District. Where multiple uses with
different parking reguirements occupy the same structure or lot,
the required number of bicycle parking spaces is the sum of the
requirements for each use computed separately.

D. BICYCLE PARKING DESIGN STANDARDS
1. Location
a. All bicycle parking areas shall be located such that they:

i.  Arevisible from, accessible from, and convenient
to building entrances and public right-of-ways;

ii. Do notinterfere with normal pedestrian and vehicle
traffic;

iii. Do not require bicyclists to travel over stairs to
access parking; and

iv. Are accessible without requiring moving bikes or
other items to access the space.

b.  Short-term bicycle parking spaces shall be located no
more than 50 feet from the principal building entrance
and at the same grade as the sidewalk or an accessible
route. The property owner may also make suitable ar-
rangements with the Department of Public Works to place
required bicycle parking spaces in the public right-of-way.
Parking in the public right-of-way shall be within 50 feet
of the principal building entrance (Figure 2.4-3 on page
26).

c. Long-term bicycle parking spaces shall be located
indoors, in weatherproof outdoor bicycle lockers, or fully
covered with an overhang or covered walkway designed
to protect bicycles from inclement weather.

d. Long-term bicycle parking for residential uses may be
provided in garages, storage rooms, and other resi-
dent-accessible, secure areas. Spaces within dwelling
units or on balconies do not count toward bicycle parking
requirements.



26

1-195 Redevelopment District

Table 2.4-1: Minimum Bicycle Parking Requirements — All Districts

Percent Long-term Covered/

working, coffee roasters, etc.

Use Number Reguired Secure (see Section 2.4.D)
Multifamily Residential 1 per 2 dwelling units 80%
Office 1 per 2500 SF 80%
Lab/Research and Development 1 per 2500 SF 80%
Hotel/Bed and Breakfast 1 per 5 rooms -
Education/Institution/Government 1 per 2500 SF 50%
Retail 1 per 2500 SF -
Restaurant/Bar/Specialty Food Service 1 per 2500 SF -
Brewery/Distillery/Winery 1 per 5000 SF -
Artisan Industrial/Industrial Design/Manufacturing uses with an

accessory retail component, such as apparel manufacturing, mill- 1 per 2500 SF 50%

Live Entertainment Venue

1 per 2500 SF

Professional Services

1 per 2500 SF

Personal Services

1 per 2500 SF

Day Care

1 per 5000 SF

Medical/Dental Office or Services

1 per 2500 SF

Arts Gallery/Arts Studio

1 per 2500 SF

Live/Work Space combining residential with commercial, retail, or
artisan industrial uses

1 per 2500 SF

Community Center/Cultural Facility

1 per 2500 SF

There are no minimum bicycle parking requirements for outdoor and/or temporary uses.

) 50 MAX
“from principal buildin
en‘irance =

é"?@f@

Short-term blcycle
spaces

Figure 2.4-3
Bicycle parking location requirements

spaces

Long-term bicycle ~
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2. Design

a. All bicycle spaces shall:

i.  Have a minimum dimension of two feet in width by

six feet in length, with a minimum vertical clear-
ance of seven feet (Figure 2.4-4);
ii. Be accessible without moving another bicycle.

7
MIN.

MIN.
Figure 2.4-4 6' MIN.
Bicycle space
Parallel
Angeled

4' MIN. Perpendicular/

Figure 2.4-5 Multiple rows

Bicycle rack orientations

Development Plan
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b.  All bicycle racks shall be installed such that they:

i.  Are securely anchored to the ground or a structure;

ii.  Support bicycles in an upright and stable position;

iii. Require minimal or no lifting of a bike:

iv. Accommodate standard U-shaped locking devices;

v.  Permit the bicycle frame and one wheel to be
locked to the rack and provide two points of con-
tact between the bicycle and rack in order to sup-
port the bicycle in a stable position (Figure 2.4-4).

. The required space between two racks and between each
rack and the curb varies by rack orientation. Where there
is more than one row of bicycle racks, there shall be an
aisle at least five feet wide between rows to allow for
bicycle maneuvering (Figure 2.4-5).

d. Ifrequired hicycle parking facilities are not visible from
the street or principal building entrance, signs shall be
posted indicating their location.

e. The bicycle parking area shall be well-lit at all hours of the
day and night.

. LOADING

Off-street loading spaces shall be provided for any use that
distributes or receives materials or merchandise by trucks or
other commercial vehicles.

Access to loading docks and areas from Primary Streets is
prohibited, with the following exceptions:

a.  When the lot has no frontage on any Secondary Streets.
b.  When supported by evidence indicating impracticality due
to site conditions.

Exterior loading docks are prohibited.

Interior loading shall be screened from view by solid, non-trans-
parent doors which shall remain closed when the loading dock
is not in use. The doors used to screen the loading area shall
be constructed of materials found elsewhere on the building
and designed to be consistent with similar building elements,
such as windows and doors, to reduce the industrial appear-
ance of the loading area.

Off-street loading space shall be designed with adequate
means of vehicular access to a street or alley and in a manner
that will minimize interference with traffic movement. The
maximum width of a one-lane curb cut for driveway access
to loading areas is 12 feet. The maximum width of a two-lane
curb cut for driveway access to loading areas is 24 feet. The
minimum linear distance between curb cuts is 50 feet, Wider
curb cuts may be permitted by waiver if it is demonstrated
that loading areas cannot be reasonably accessed given site
conditions (Figure 2.4-1),
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2.5 Design Standards

Waivers to the standards in this section may be approved by a vote
of the Commission, unless otherwise indicated.

A. BUILDING DESIGN STANDARDS
1. Massing and Facade Articulation

a. For buildings more than 120 feet long, there must be a
change in plane in the building facade above the ground
floor every 100 feet, using architectural features such as
notches, bays, offset facades, etc.

b. The design of the building base shall be distinguished
from the upper stories through the use of facade artic-
ulation, material changes, and/or similar architectural
features.

c. Three-dimensional facade elements, such as balconies
and bay windows, are encouraged.

d. Flat roofs shall include cornices, parapets, or similar
architectural details to add articulation and create a shad-
ow line at the top of the facade.

e. For buildings 150 feet tall or more, a Wind Impact Study
may be required.

2. Fenestration

a. Building facades shall not contain blank wall areas ex-
ceeding 25 linear feet, measured parallel to the street.
h. For all non-residential ground floor uses:

i, Facades shall provide areas of transparency equal
to at least 70% of the wall area, between the height
of one and 12 feet from the ground (Figure 2.5-1).

ii. The bottom of the window frame shall be no higher
than two feet above the adjacent grade except
where required to meet dry floodproofing require-
ments for facade elements below DFE-1.

Where ground-floor residential uses are allowed, the
ground-floor facade of residential uses shall contain ar-
eas of transparency equal to at least 35% of the wall area
of the ground-floor facade between the height of two feet
and nine feet above grade. If tied to industry-recognized
energy efficiency targets or certifications, a reduction in
ground-floor residential transparency to at least 25% can
be approved administratively, using the calculation meth-
od described above.

Upper story facades shall provide areas of transparency
equal to at least 35% of the wall area (Figure 2.5-1). If
tied to industry-recognized energy efficiency targets or
certifications, a reduction in upper story transparency to
at least 25% can be approved administratively.

The facade transparency percentage for each facade type
(non-residential ground floor, residential ground floor, and
upper story) is calculated and enforced in aggregate for
all applicable building facades of a given type, rather than
being calculated and enforced for each individual facade.

|
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Figure 2.5-1
Fenestration transparency requirements
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f. Windows shall only be composed of clear or lightly tinted b. Use of one continuous Awning across more than one
glass. Highly reflective window coatings are prohibited. building is prohibited.
Ground-floor and upper-story windows shall be composed c.  Awnings shall be constructed of metal, canvas, or fire-re-
of glass with a visible light transmittance (VLT) of at least sistant acrylic. Plastic and vinyl are prohibited.
50% and a maximum exterior reflectivity of no more than d. Back-lit, dome, and waterfall Awnings are prohibited.
12%. e.  Awnings may project up to eight feet into the public right-

of-way. Refer to Section 2.5.B.2 Encroachments into
3. Building Entry the Public Right-of-Way Not for Habitation for additional

detail.

f. All Awnings shall maintain a minimum vertical clearance
of eight feet and the uppermost edge of the Awning shall
sit below the second floor windowsill.

a. For parcels with Primary Street frontage, buildings shall
have their main entrance from a sidewalk on a Primary
Street. For parcels without Primary Street frontage, build-
ings shall have their main entrance from a sidewalk on a

Secondary Street. ; ; :

b. Entrances shall either be recessed from the plane of the 5. Canopies and Marquees (as defined in Section 4.1)
facade or have a projecting Canopy, to provide adequate a. Canopies and Marquees shall be supported solely by the
protection from the elements (Figure 2.5-2). building to which they are attached. No exterior columns

c. Building facades that are 100 or more linear feet in length or posts are permitted as supports.
shall incorporate building entrances no more than every b. The roof of a Canopy or Marquee shall not be used for
40 linear feet of building frontage along the primary build- any purpose other than to form and constitute a roof and
ing frontage (Figure 2.5-2). shall be constructed of noncombustible material.

d.  For buildings with residential uses on the ground floor, c.  Water from the roof of a Canopy or Marquee shall not
individual unit entrances from the public right-of-way are drain, drip, or flow onto the surface of a public right-of-
required (Figure 2.5-2). way. Sufficient downspouts, drains, and gutters shall be

installed as part of each Marquee to prevent water from
4. Awnings (as defined in Section 4.1) the roof of the Canopy or Marquee from flowing onto the

a. Awnings shall be variations on the shed form. surideeofa public ght-of waj,

Residential

entries 40" MAX. between
building entrances
if building is 100’ or
more in length
Figure 2.5-2

Building entry requirements

Development Plan
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d. Canopies or Marquees shall be erected over a building
entrance and are limited to the width of the building
entrance, plus a maximum of five additional feet on each
side of the entrance doors covered by the Canopy or
Marquee.

e. AllCanopies and Marquees shall maintain a minimum
vertical clearance of eight feet and the roof of the Canopy
or Marquee structure shall be erected below the second
floor window sill.

f.  Marquees may encroach into the public right-of-way
up to two feet from the curb line. Refer to Section 2.5.B
Encroachments into the Public Right-of-Way Not for Habi-
tation for additional detail. _

g. Canopies may project up to eight feet into the public
right-of-way. Refer to Section 2.5.B Encroachments into
the Public Right-of-Way Not for Habitation for additional
detail.

h. Use of one continuous Canopy or Marquee across mare
than one building is prohibited.

6. Roof

a. White roofs, which reflect solar energy to reduce heat
transfer to the building, are required for any area of the
roof not used for habitable space, plantings, or mechani-
cal equipment.

b. Habitable and non-habitable green roofs, which are plant-

ed with vegetation, are encouraged.

c. Blue roofs, which enable stormwater to be captured and
gradually discharged, are encouraged.

d. Roof-mounted solar panels and wind turbines are permit-
ted, subject to the design standards detailed in sections
2.5.C.5,2.5.C.6,and 2.5.C.7.

7. Mechanical Equipment

a. Building-mounted mechanical and/or electrical equipment
such as louvers, exhaust equipment, ducts, alarm devices,
cable boxes, utility meters, etc. shall not be mounted on a
Primary Street facade.

b. Ground-mounted mechanical equipment is prohibited
along Primary Streets.

c. Ground-mounted mechanical equipment located along a
Secondary Street shall be located a minimum of 20 feet
from the lot line along a Primary Street (Figure 2.5-3).

d. Roof-mounted mechanical equipment shall be set back
from the edge of the roof a minimum distance of one foot
for every two feet by which the equipment extends above
the roof (Figure 2.5-3).

e. Ground-mounted mechanical equipment shall be
screened to limit visibility by a pedestrian from adja-
cent public right-of-ways and pedestrian pathways. The
screening shall complement the design of the building
through the use of appropriate plantings and complemen-
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tary materials, colors, finishes, and architectural details
(Figure 2.5-3).

f.  Roof-mounted mechanical equipment shall be screened
to limit visibility by a pedestrian from adjacent public
right-of-ways. The screening shall complement the design
of the building through the use of complementary ma-
terials, colors, finishes, and architectural details (Figure
2.5-3).

B. ENCROACHMENTS INTO THE PUBLIC RIGHT-OF-WAY

Certain architectural features and uses are permitted to encroach
into the public right-of-way by an encroachment permit granted by
the City of Providence. Two types of encroachments are permitted
into the public right-of-way as described in this section:

1. Encroachment for Habitation

a. Anencroachment for habitation is any construction that
projects from a building over, onto, or under a public right-
of-way that is designed for and can accommodate human
or other hahitation including, but not limited to, balconies,
bay windows, arcades, overhangs, basement vaults, sub-
terranean parking garages, and the like, whether support-
ed by the ground or not.

b. Anencroachment for habitation includes structures and
similar elements for ancillary uses including outdoor
dining, temporary outdoor sales, temporary outdoor
entertainment, temporary mobile food sales, and live en-
tertainment when such uses are conducted on the public
right-of-way.

c. Where the vertical clearance above grade to projecting
windows and balconies is more than eight feet, one inch
of encroachment is permitted for each additional one inch
of vertical clearance above eight feet, up to a maximum
of four feet of encroachment (Figure 2.5-4).

2. Encroachment Not for Habitation

a. Anencroachment not for habitation is any construction
that projects from a building over, onto, or under a public
right-of-way that is not designed for and cannot accom-
modate human or other habitation including, but not lim-
ited to, Awnings, Canopies, Marquees, signs, architectural
embellishments, foundations, wheelchair ramps, stairs,
and the like, whether supported by the ground or not.

b. Anencroachment not for habitation that encroaches over,
onto, or under a public right-of-way is limited as follows:

i. Awnings, Canopies, and signs with less than 15
feet vertical clearance above the sidewalk may ex-
tend into or occupy up to two-thirds of the width of
the sidewalk measured from the lot line. Awnings,
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Figure 2.5-5
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Canopies, and signs with 15 feet or more vertical
clearance above the sidewalk may extend into or
occupy up to 100% of the width of the sidewalk
(Figure 2.5-5).

ii. All other encroachments may extend up to four
feet into the right-of-way, but in no case may ex-
tend farther than the curb line (Figure 2.5-5).

C. ACCESSORY STRUCTURES AND USES

1. Outdoor Dining

a.

b.

Outdoor dining shall not interfere with any pedestrian
access or parking spaces and aisles.

Outdoor dining areas shall be located on private property
unless an encroachment permit is granted by the City of
Providence to allow outdoor dining in the public right-of-
way.

An outdoor dining area for an establishment shall be as
continuous as possible by locating the outdoor dining
areain a single portion of an establishment's frontage.

2. Outdoor Sales and Display

a.

Retail goods establishments and similar retail uses are
permitted to have accessory outdoor sales and display
of merchandise. However, outdoor storage of goods not
offered for sale by the establishment is prohibited.

Any outdoor display shall be located on the same lot as
the principal use. Outdoor display may be located on the
adjoining sidewalk only with the appropriate City of Provi-
dence permits and/or licenses.

The goods may only be displayed when the use is open
for business and shall be removed at the end of each
business day.

3. Public Art

a.

Proposals for public art on private property within the
District shall be approved as part of Concept and Final
Plan Approval or subsequently by the Executive Director.
Proposals of a significant or permanent nature or in a
prominent location may be recommended for a vote by
the Commission. Proposals for public art within the public
right-of-way are subject to the authority of the City of
Pravidence.

4. Refuse and Recycling Container

a.

b.

Refuse and recycling containers are prohibited along
Primary Streets.

All refuse and recycling containers shall be fully enclosed
on three sides by a solid fence, wall, or wall of the princi-

pal building to a minimum of six feet and a maximum of
eight feet in height. The enclosure shall have a solid gate.

5. Rooftop Accessory Structure

a.

Accessory structures and rooftop features, such as green
roofs, rooftop decks, rooftop gardens, stormwater deten-
tion systems, and similar accessory structures and uses
are permitted on rooftops. Such structures are excluded
from the calculation of height.

The roof shall contain sufficient space for future nec-
essary operational installations such as mechanical
equipment.

6. Solar Energy System (Accessory Use)

a.

d.

Solar panels may be building-mounted or, if a Special
Exception is granted for a parking lot, solar panels may be
constructed as a freestanding canopy above a parking lot.
Solar panels shall be placed so that concentrated solar
radiation or glare is not directed onto nearby properties or
roadways.

A building-mounted system may be mounted on the roof
or wall of a principal building or accessory structure, sub-
ject to the following restrictions:

i.  On pitched-roof buildings, solar panels must be at
the same slope as the roof and offset a maximum
of six inches.

ii. On flat-roofed buildings, the solar panel system
is limited to 15 feet above the height of such
structure. Roof-mounted solar energy systems are
excluded from the calculation of building height.

iii. If visible from the right-of-way of any Primary
Street abutting the property, the solar panels shall
be integrated into the structure as an architectural
feature.

Solar panels may be co-located on structures such as
light poles.

7.  Wind Energy System (Accessory Use)

a.

Wind turbines may be designed as either vertical or
horizontal axis turbines with or without exposed blades,
including designs that combine elements of the different
types of turbines.

Ground-mounted turbines are prohibited.

Roof-mounted wind turbines are allowed, subject to the
following restrictions:

i. Roof-mounted wind turbines are limited to a
maximum of 15 feet above the rooftop or parapet,
whichever is greater. Roof-mounted wind turbines
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are excluded from the calculation of building
height.

Maximum height is the total height of the turbine
system, including the tower and the maximum
vertical height of the turbine blades. Maximum
height therefore is calculated measuring the length
of a blade at maximum vertical rotation to the base
of the tower.

Roof-mounted wind turbines shall be set back a
minimum of 20 feet from all building walls, and
shall be screened from view to the extent possible.
Shadow flicker shall be confined to the roof of the
structure. This standard may be waived if no nega-
tive impacts result from a greater area of shadow
flicker.

1-195 Redevelopment District
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2.6 Floo

Waivers to the standards in this section may be approved by a vote
of the Commission, unless otherwise indicated.

A. GOALS

The goal of flood resilience standards in the District is to balance
best practices for long-term flood protection with reasonable
development feasibility and public realm benefit. Flood resilience
standards are specific to the District's unique geography and
hydrology, and include measures to protect new structures from
both the immediate threats of riverine and tidal flooding, as well as
longer-term risk associated with storm surges. The District sits in
a FEMA X zone and is not subject to FEMA flood requirements, as
it is protected by a hurricane barrier. Requirements set forth in this
document reflect risks from existing riverine flooding events and
future sea level rise, neither of which are currently accounted for in
FEMA regulations.

Two design flood elevations have been identified to address these
varied conditions.

B. GROUND-FLOOR DESIGN FLOOD ELEVATION (DFE-1)

DFE-1 is intended to elevate new development above the impacts of
current riverine and future tidal flood risk from which the Fox Point
Hurricane Barrier does not provide protection.

1. Required Minimum Elevation

DFE-1 shall be at a minimum elevation of 9.3' NAVD88, which
is the highest recorded level of precipitation-related flooding in
the Providence River.

2.  Below Minimum Elevation

Where existing grades are lower than DFE-1, the preferred
approach is to locate vertical circulation elements, such as
stairs and ramps, external to the building so that all internal
uses are above DFE-1. External circulation elements should
contribute to the activation of the public realm; at a minimum
they should be accesible and well-landscaped. On dimensional-
ly constrained sites where external vertical circulation may not
be feasible or practical, ground-floor uses below DFE-1 shall
be dry floodproofed. Any occupiable space below DFE-1 must
be dry floodproofed except low-occupancy service spaces
such as loading and parking, which must be wet floodproofed
ata-minimum. Deployable flood-barriers-are permitted as-part
of a dry floodproofing approach. Any electrical switches and
wiring located in an elevator hoistway below DFE-1 must be dry
floodproofed.

esilience

tandards

3. Uses
In no case shall the following uses be permitted below DFE-1:

+  Residential,

« day care,

+ medical and health care,
« educational, or

+  government.

Accessory uses to the above-listed uses such as lobbies, verti-
cal circulation, and loading, are permitted below DFE-1.

4, One-Story Structures
One-story structures may locate critical mechanical and electri-
cal building systems at grade, but not below DFE-1.

C. SECOND-FLOOR DESIGN FLOOD ELEVATION (DFE-2)

DFE-2 is intended to provide longer-term resilience in multi-story
buildings in the event that the hurricane barrier is inoperable or
overtopped by a future storm surge exacerbated by sea level rise.

1. Required Minimum Elevation
DFE-2 establishes a benchmark for the protection and con-
tinued occupancy of upper stories and shall be at a minimum
elevation of 24.5' NAVD88.
2. Critical Systems
Critical mechanical and electrical systems in multi-story build-
ings are not permitted to be located at elevations below DFE-2.
3. Below Minimum Elevation
The use of flood-resistant materials and provisions for flood
vents or their future installation below DFE-2 is encouraged.

D. APPLICABILITY

DFE-2 applies to the entire District. DFE-1 applies only to parcels
that are partially or fully below the DFE-1 threshold. Parcels that
may be fully or partially below the DFE-1 threshold are as follows:

+  Parcel 1a
»  Parcel 2

+  Parcel 14
= Parcel 15

« Parcels 22 & 25 Lot 1
*  Parcel 22 Lot 2

+  Parcel 25 Lot 3

+  Parcel 22& 25 Lot 4
+  Parcel 22 Lot 5

+  Parcel 42
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See Section 4.3 and Section 3 Parcel Specifications for more detail.
Developers are responsible for determining elevations.

E. DEFINITIONS

See Section 4.4 for definitions and examples of wet and dry
floodproofing, as well as other emerging best practices for building

resilience.
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Figure 2.6-1
Design Flood Elevations

DFE-1: 9.3' (NAVDDS88)
Level 1 Min,

Based on Historic
Riverine Flooding

@*

Grade

All uses permitted;

critical building

infrastructure and mechanical
systems required to be at this
level or higher in multi-story
buildings.

All uses permitted except
critical building infrastructure
and mechanical systems in
multi-story buildings. Single-
story buildings may locate
critical systems no lower than
9.3' NAVDS8S.

Dry floodproofing required
for any occupiable space.
Wet floodproofing required
for parking, loading, and
other low-occupancy uses.
Residential, day care, medical
or healthcare, educational
or government uses are not
permitted, except related
accessory uses such as
lobbies, vertical circulation
elements, and loading.
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2.7 Site Improvements

Waivers to the standards in this section may be approved by a vote
of the Commission, unless otherwise indicated.

A. EXTERIOR LIGHTING

In order to ensure that impacts of exterior lighting on adjacent prop-
erties are controlled, exterior lighting shall adhere to the following
requirements:

1. Maximum Lighting Regulations

a. Themaximum allowable light level at any lot line is one
foot-candle.
b. No glare onto adjacent properties is permitted.

2. Luminaire Standards

a. Al luminaires shall be designed as cut-off luminaires
with a cut-off angle of 75 degrees or less, subject to the
following standards:

i, The maximum total height of a cut-off luminaire,
either freestanding or attached to a structure, shall
be 18 feet. The total height of a luminaire is mea-
sured to the top of the pole or luminaire, whichever
is higher, from grade (Figure 2.7-1).

i Acut-off luminaire shall be designed to completely
shield the light source from an observer three and
one-half feet above the ground at any point along
an abutting lot line (Figure 2.7-1).

ii. Flickering or flashing lights are prohibited.

iv. Searchlights, laser source lights, or any similar high
intensity lights are prohibited.

m
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v. Electrical conduit and junction boxes shall be
located so as to minimize o, if possible, eliminate
their visibility from the public right-of-way.

. FENCES AND WALLS

Fences and walls shall not exceed six feet in height. The com-
bined height of any fence and wall cannot be more than six
feet, with the exception of enclosures for refuse and recycling
containers, which may be up to eight feet in height.

No fence or wall within five feet of the lot line along a Primary
Street, or a Secondary Street if there is no Primary Street front-
age, shall exceed 36 inches in height.

Height is measured from the adjacent finished grade to the
highest point, with the exception that decorative posts of a
fence or wall may exceed the maximum height by six inches.

The bottom rail of a fence shall be installed a maximum verti-
cal distance of six inches above the adjacent finished grade for
the entire length of the fence.

Barbed wire and razor wire fences are prohibited.

Permanent chain link fences are prohibited. Temporary chain
link fencing is permissible only during construction.

. LANDSCAPING REQUIREMENTS

Landscape Design Standards

a. Selection of Plant Materials: All plant materials shall meet
American Association of Nurserymen (AAN) standards
for minimum acceptable form, guality, and size for

75°
T == MAX.

18'
MAX.

I - 3'6"MAX. at
property line

Figure 2.7-1
Luminaire standards
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species selected, and capable to withstand the seasonal
temperature variations of Rhode Island, as well as the
individual site microclimate. The use of species native or
naturalized to Rhode Island is encouraged. Where appro-
priate, the use of drought and salt tolerant plant material
is preferred.

b. Installation of Plant Materials: All landscape materials
shall be installed in accordance with the current planting
procedures established by the AAN.

c.  Minimum Planting Sizes:

i.  Shade trees shall have a minimum trunk size of
two inches in tree caliper at planting.

ii. Evergreens trees shall have a minimum height of
six feet at planting.

iii. Single stem ornamental trees shall have a min-
imum trunk size of two inches in tree caliper at
planting. Multiple stem ornamental trees shall have
a minimum height of eight feet at planting.

iv. Large deciduous and evergreen shrubs, which
reach five or more feet in height at maturity, shall
have minimum height of three feet at installation.
Small deciduous and evergreen shrubs, which are
those typically maintained at up to 30 inches in
height, shall have a minimum height of 18 inches
at installation.

Species Diversity: Diversity in plant material is required for visu-
al interest and to reduce the risk of losing a large population of
plants due to disease.

Tree Protection during Construction: All precautions shall be
undertaken to prevent construction damage to existing trees,
as described in the City of Providence Tree Ordinance. Protec-
tion includes prevention of injury to the trunk, branches, and
root systems. No person may create a trench through the root
system of an existing tree, expose the roots to the air overnight
without a method for maintaining moisture, change the soil
grade within the dripline of the tree, or cause soil compaction
with the use of vehicles, machinery, or other method. The root
systems of trees on adjacent lots shall also be protected.

On-site Landscaping and Required Trees: All portions of a lot
not covered by structures or paved surfaces shall be land-
scaped with trees, shrubbery, grass, live groundcover, and other
plantings. The landscape design may also include the use of
stone, mulch beds, or other pervious landscaping materials
(this excludes pervious pavement).

Development Plan
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Waivers to the standards in this section may be approved by a vote
of the Commission, unless otherwise indicated. Within the Open
Space District, waivers to the standards in this section may be
approved by the Executive Director.

A. SIGN DESIGN STANDARDS

1.

All signs, including window signs, are subject to approval by
the Executive Director.

All signs should be proportional to the architecture they relate
to and should complement the scale and features of the
architecture. The scale, orientation, and design of all signs
should take into consideration their visibility and the distance,
direction, and speed of travel of their primary and secondary
audiences.

All signs placed within a public right-of-way require a City of
Providence right-of-way encroachment permit.

Permanent signs shall be made of metal, painted wood, or
other high-quality, durable materials.

Construction Standards

a. Supports and braces shall be designed as an integral part
of the overall sign design and hidden from public view to
the extent technically feasible.

b. All signs shall be designed and constructed in accor-
dance with building and fire codes.

¢. Glass forming any part of a sign shall be safety glass.

d. Al letters, figures, characters, or representations in cut-
out or irregular form, maintained in conjunction with, at-
tached to, or superimposed upon any sign shall be safely
and securely built into or attached to the sign structure.

e. Audio components are prohibited on any sign.

f.  All signs shall be fastened to masonry buildings so to
be removable without leaving significant damage to the
building facade. Attachments should be made at mortar
joints, not at the surface of masonry units.

Electrical Wiring

a. All electrical fixtures, devices, circuits, conduits, raceways,
or apparatus used to illuminate, move, or project any sign
shall be installed and maintained in accordance with the
building code and the electrical code. Electrical permits
are required for signs with an electrical component.

b, Conduits and other components of a signillumination
system shall be designed as an integral part of the overall
sign structure and hidden from public view to the extent
technically feasible.

T

8.

Sign Copy

a. Al sign copy shall relate to the name or nature of the
business or establishment on the site. This does not
apply to non-commercial messages.

b. A non-commercial message may be substituted for a
commercial message on any permitted sign.

c. Items of information are limited to a maximum of six
items per sign face. ltems of information are calculated
as follows:

i. Each of the following is defined as one item of
information: establishment name, logo, telephone
number, website address, or product or service. A
street address number, if included in the sign copy,
is not counted as an item of information.

ii. If asign advertises products or services, each
praduct or service, including multi-word, is consid-
ered one item of information. Where multiple prod-
ucts are identified on a menu board or sidewalk
sign, the list of products is considered one item of
information.

iii. A signused to identify the tenants within a multi-
tenant non-residential development is limited
to one item of information per tenant within the
development, in addition to the name and address
of the development. The sign may exceed six items
of information.

iv. The message area of a changeable or electronic
message display, on which information is changed
manually or digitally, is counted as one item of
information.

v. Directory signs and A-frame signs are exempt from
the items of information limitation.

lllumination Standards

a. Signs may be externally illuminated. All external illumina-
tion of a sign shall concentrate the illumination upon the
printed area of the sign face.

b. Internally illuminated signs are prohibited with the excep-
tion of the following types:

i. Reverse channel. A method of illumination that
casts a shadow of lettering or a logo on the face to
which it is mounted.

ii. Stencil or channel-cut. A method of illumination
that lights lettering or a logo and does not light the
remaining face of the sign.

iii. Halo. A method of illumination that produces a
halo of light surrounding lettering or a logo without
illuminating the surface to which it is mounted.
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¢. The sign face of internally illuminated signs shall function
as a filter to diffuse illumination. The sign face shall cover
all internal illumination components so that no exposed
bulbs or lighting components are visible.

d. Any sign illumination, including gooseneck reflectors,
external illumination, and internal illumination, shall be de-
signed, located, shielded, and directed to prevent the cast-
ing of glare or direct light upon roadways and surrounding
properties, or the distraction of motor vehicle operators or
pedestrians in the public right-of-way.

e. Theintensity of sign illumination shall meet the require-
ments for exterior lighting in Section 2.7.A.

f. Nosign illumination may be combined with reflective ma-
terials, such as mirrors, polished metal, or highly-glazed
tiles, which would increase glare.

g. The use of neon, LED lighting, or exposed bulhs that are
designed as an integral part of the sign are permitted as
a sign material or sign accent. When lit, lighting shall be
continuously illuminated. Flashing neon, flashing LED
lighting, or flashing exposed bulbs are prohibited. Nean,
LED lighting, or exposed bulbs to outline doors and win-
dows are prohibited.

B. PROHIBITED SIGNS

1. Balloon and air-infused/air-inflated signs.
Cabinet box wall signs and cabinet box projecting signs.
Flashing or animated signs.

lllegally-affixed signs and snipe signs.

g o= N

Moving signs, including signs intended or designed to be
moved by wind or other natural elements. Clocks and barber
poles are exempt from this provision.

6. Off-premises signs, both permanent signs (also known as bill-
boards) and temporary off-premise signs. This prohibition does
not include signs placed on public transit stations, bike-sharing
stations, car-share facilities, or park amenities when such signs
are placed by the sponsors of such facilities. This prohibition
does not include political/non-commercial message signs.

7. Portable signs. Portable signs include both signs mounted on a
wheeled structure and those mounted on a stationary structure
that can be moved and is not permanently installed on a site.

8. Electronic message signs.
9. Strobe lights, moving or fixed spotlights, and floodlights.

10. Traffic hazard signs. Any sign that constitutes a traffic hazard
is prohibited, including signs that:

a. Interfere with, obstruct the view of, or may be confused
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with any authorized traffic sign, signal, or device because
of its position, shape, or color, including signs illuminated
in red, green, or amber color to resemble a traffic signal.

b. Make use of the words STOP, LOOK, DETOUR, DANGER,
CAUTION, WARNING, or any other word, phrase, symbol,
or character in a manner that misleads, interferes with, or
confuses traffic.

C. TEMPORARY SIGNS

Temporary signs, such as A-frame signs and banners, shall be gov-
erned by the Providence Zoning Ordinance guidance on temporary
banners, A-frame signs, attention getting devices, and construction
signs. Temporary signs within the public right-of-way shall be sub-
ject to the permitting authority of the City of Providence, whereas
temporary signs affixed to District buildings shall be reviewed and
approved by the Executive Director.

D. PERMANENT SIGNS

Before any sign is erected, it must be reviewed by the District staff
and the Executive Director's approval is required. At the discretion
of the Executive Director, all proposed signs will be reviewed and
granted approval on an as-needed basis. No sign may encroachinto
the public right-of-way unless permitted by this section.

1. Awning and Canopy Signs (Figure 2.8-1, see Section 4.1 for
definitions)

a. Awning and Canopy signs are permitted for multifamily
dwellings and non-residential uses.

b.  Sign printing is limited to 25% of the surface area of the
Awning or Canopy.

c. Canopy signs consisting of lettering attached to and lo-
cated above the top of a solid Canopy are permitted if the
sign is in proportion to the height of the Canopy to which
the sign relates.

d. Awning and Canopy signs may be externally illuminated
and shall be focused on the printed area.

e. Signs are permitted to be mounted under Awnings,
Canopies, galleries, and arcades. They are subject to the
following:

i.  Signs shall not project beyond the Awning or
Canopy.

ii. Signs shall maintain a minimum vertical clearance
of seven feet.

iii. A maximum of one Awning, Canopy or Marquee
sign is permitted per business establishment with
frontage on the street where the Awning or Canopy
is mounted.

iv. Signs shall be securely fixed to the Awning or Can-
opy with metal supports.
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2. Marquee Signs (Figure 2.8.2, see Section 4.1 for definition)

a. Marquee signs consisting of lettering attached to and
located above the roof of a Marquee is permitted if the
sign is in proportion to the height of the Marquee to which
the sign relates.

3.  Window Signs (Figure 2.8-1)

a. All window signs, whether temporary or permanent, 5.
are limited to no more than 25% of the surface of each
window area. Window area is counted as a continuous
surface until divided by an architectural or structural
element. Mullions are not considered an element that
divides window area.

4. Wall Signs (Figure 2.8-1)

a. Permitted wall sign size is determined based on demon- 6.
strated proportional relationship to the building facade
on which the sign appears, not based on an absolute
maximum.

b. Wall signs shall be safely and securely attached to the
building wall. Wall signs shall be affixed flat against the
wall and shall not project more than 15 inches from the
building wall. Wall signs shall not encroach into the public
right-of-way for more than 15 inches.

c. No wall sign affixed to a building, including sign support
structure, may project beyond the ends or top of the wall
or higher than the roofline of the structure to which it is
attached.

d. Wall signs are permitted on architectural appurtenances,

such as chimneys or penthouses, which are part of the
structure.

Directory Signs

a. Directory signs are permitted for any multi-tenant devel-
opment.

b. A maximum of one building directory sign is permitted per
public entrance.

c. A building directory sign shall be wall-mounted and is

limited to six square feet in area.

Property Identification Signs

a. A maximum of one property identification sign identify-
ing the property management company is permitted per
building.

b. Aproperty identification sign shall be wall-mounted and is

limited to two square feet in area.

'/;-En_c_:r_oachment:
-~ 15" MAX: -

Window Sign-Area:
MAX. 25% of contiguious ==
window area

Figure 2.8-1
Sign design standards

Awning Sign:
= ===Printing is limited to 25% of
aW'ﬁ'EHZQESQEf§Ce

-\‘-lﬁﬂﬁﬁi‘?@yping Sign Area:
T Esg.ft. MAX.

—

=
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7. Freestanding Signs

a. Freestanding signs are prohibited except by waiver.

8. Projecting Signs (Figure 2.8-1)

a. Projecting signs are allowed as indicated in
Table 2.8-1.

b. One projecting sign is permitted per each facade of an es-
tablishment. Projecting signs shall be above or adjacent
to the building entrance.

c. Projecting signs may encroachinto the public right-of-way
but shall be located at least two feet from the curb line.

d. Projecting signs shall maintain a minimum vertical clear-
ance of eight feet. No projecting sign affixed to a building
may project higher than the building height, including the
sign support structure.

e. No projecting sign may be secured or hung to any other
sign.

9. Roof Signs (Figure 2.8-2)

a. Roof signs are permitted.

b. Roof signs are limited to a maximum sign area of 128
square feet.

c. Roof sign height is not counted toward maximum building
height.

d. A maximum of one roof sign is permitted per building.
Only buildings with flat roofs are permitted a roof sign.

e. Aroof sign shall be set back from the outermost walls of
the roof.

f.  Roof signs shall be safely and securely attached to the
roof structure and shall not interfere with any roof access
points.

I-195 Redevelopment District

10. Parking Lot Signs

a. Parking Lot Directional Signs

Parking lot directional signs are permitted for each
entrance/exit and similar circulation points for any
parking lot, whether a principal or ancillary use.
Parking lot directional signs are limited to four
square feet in area.

A freestanding parking lot directional sign is
limited to four feet in height and shall be three feet
from any lot line.

b. Parking Lot Information Signs

Parking lot information signs are exempt from
review and approval provided they meet the stan-
dards below.

Parking lot information signs providing information
on the operation of a parking lot, such as “No Park-
ing" or "Unauthorized Users Shall Be Towed," are
permitted as needed for any parking lot, whether a
principal or ancillary use.

Parking lot information signs are limited to ten
square feet in area.

Freestanding signs are limited to six feet in height
and shall be three feet from any lot line.

Table 2.8-1: Projecting Sign Regulations

District Maximum Sign Area Per Sign
West Side Highway 48 SF
West Side Riverfront 32 SF
East Side 20 SF
Open Space 20 SF

Figure 2.8-2 =SS
Marquee, projecting sign, and roof sign design standards

Roof Sign Area:
128 sq.ft. MAX.

PrajéqTﬁﬂJrSLQn_Area!a: J
Based on district=~_ |

_ﬁablek.&f]) ‘ %

S
Sy

[

l
erficjl Clearance: s
TEMN |

L

Development Plan
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E. SIGN DIMENSION MEASUREMENT
1. Measurement of Sign Area (Figure 2.8-3)

a. For signs on a background, the entire area of the back-
ground is calculated as sign area, including any material
or color forming the sign face and the background used
to differentiate the sign from the structure against which
it is mounted. Sign area does not include any supports or
bracing.

b. For signs consisting of freestanding letters or logos, the
sign area is calculated as the total area of each square,
circle, rectangle, or triangle, or combination thereof, which
encompasses each individual letter or logo. Sign area
does not include any supports or bracing.

c. Window signs printed on a transparent film and affixed to
the interior or exterior of a windowpane are calculated as
individual letters or logos, provided that the portion of the
transparent film around the perimeter of the individual let-
ters or logos maintains 100% transparency of the window.

B.
C. | 1
| | f1iN 50 "
i i %
, [ Slgy
| ] -
Figure 2.8-3

Measurement of sign area

Development Plan
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| 1

Parce

\

Pavilion

F\
\
\

Providence

Dimensional Regulations

Parcel Area 0.28 ac.

District East Side District

Minimum Building Height 1 story

15' for non-residential uses;

Minimum Ground-Floor Story Height T fortasidertial wses

Maximum Building Height 6 stories

Primary Street and Secondary Street
Build-to-line

Build-to zone of 0' to 8', with mini-
mum build-to percentage of 80%

Interior Side Build-to-line none

Rear Sethack none

Special Considerations

+ Existing grade of parcel is below DFE-1. Refer to Section 2.6 Flood

Resilience Standards for flood resilience design requirements.

Urban Coastal Greenway (UCG) area extends 20' inland from the
"Goastal Feature” (the seawall); UCG Construction Setback extends
25" inland from the inland edge of the UCG. Applicants may apply to
the Rhode Island Coastal Resources Management Council (CRMC)
for a waiver from the 25' UCG Construction Setback.

Histaric Alignment of the former Coin St, Patriot St, and Doubloon St
riverfront gangways shall be visually or physically reflected through

the use of signs, pavement markings, architecture, or other interpre-
tive elements.

Surface parking lots and parking structures are prohibited.
Curb cuts and driveway access are prohibited.

Parcel 1A is within the College Hill Historic District, which is listed
in the National Register of Historic Places. Proposals should be
designed to complement the historic context.

Proposals for development of Parcel 1A should consider the adjacen-
cy to Riverwalk, the strong pedestrian and bicycle desire line to and
from the Michael S. Van Leesten Memorial Bridge, and the proximity
to 195 District Park when planning the uses and design of the ground
floor.

il

Approximate Area of Existing Grade Below DFE-1
Parcel Area

Parcel Boundary

Note: Fullinvestigation of easements, elevations, and other external
constraints to development is the responsibility of the project
proponent.

Development Plan
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Parcel 2

N X N
. N2 Ve, Parcel Specifications
' \ ) — ¢ Parcel Area 1.13
\\ﬁg\ Cl Si} District East Side District
Minimum Building Height 2 staries

15' for non-residential uses;
12' for residential uses

\f{ \ i Minimum Ground Floor Height
;“\l—-ﬂfr Maximum Building Height 6 stories

1t Primary Street and Secondary Street | Build-to zone of 0" to 8', with mini-

Build-to-line mum build-to percentage of 80%
Interior Side Build-to-line none

N
Rear Setback none

Providence Special Considerations

River

* The northwest corner of the parcel may sit below DFE-1. Refer to
Section 2.6 Flood Resilience Standards for flood resilience design

\ requirements.
¥ N * Parcel 2 is affected by several easements, most importantly a 30'

easement that runs through the parcel in alignment with Transit
Street.

* Hardscape and landscape may be built at-grade in the easement
area. Buildings may bridge the utility easement at no less than 25'
above finished grade.

* Proposals for development of Parcel 2 should consider the adjacency
to City Walk and the strong pedestrian and bicycle desire line to and
from the Michael S. Van Leesten Memorial Bridge and the proximity
to the park when planning the uses and design of the ground floor.

+ Parcel 2 is within the College Hill National Register Historic District,
which is listed in the National Register of Historic Places. Proposals
should be designed to complement the historic context.

* A portion of Parcel 2 hordering James Street is subject to the City
of Providence zoning ordinance. To achieve maximum height in this
area, developers must meet City zoning requirements for height
bonuses.

* Parcel 2 is subject to a 22-foot wide access/egress easement to and
from James Street for the benefit of the abutting property on the
corner of James and South Main Streets.

Note: Fullinvestigation of easements, elevations, and other external
constraints to development is the responsibility of the project
proponent.

= Approximate Area of Existing Grade Below DFE-1
Parcel Area

= Parcel Boundary

Development Plan
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Parcel 5

Dimensional Regulations

Parcel Area 1.49 ac.
District East Side District
Minimum Building Height 2 stories

15' for non-residential uses;

Minimum Ground-Floor Story Height 12" for residential uses

Maximum Building Height 6 stories

Primary Street and Secondary Street | Build-tozoneof0'to8', with mini-

B

Build-to-line mum build-to percentage of 80%
Interior Side Build-to-line none
Rear Sethack none

Cy S
Y by s

Special Considerations

Providence //:/
River S F

48

+ Proposals for development of Parcel 5 are encouraged to provide
permeability through the parcel to provide pedestrian access to the
east side of 195 District Park and the Providence River.

+ Proposals for development of Parcel 5 should consider the adjacency
to City Walk and the strong pedestrian and bicycle desire line to and
from the Michael S. Van Leesten Memorial Bridge when planning the
uses and design of the ground floor.

« Parcel 5 is within the College Hill Historic District, which is listed
in the National Register of Historic Places. Proposals should be
designed to complement the historic context.

Note: Full investigation of easements, elevations, and other external
constraints to development is the responsibility of the project
proponent.

Development Plan
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Parcel 6

Dimensional Regulations

Parcel Area 1.48 ac.
District East Side District
Minimum Building Height 2 stories

15" for non-residential uses;

Minimum Ground-Floor Story Height 12’ for residential uses

Maximum Building Height 6 stories

Primary Street and Secondary Street | Build-to zone of 0' to 8', with mini-
Build-to-line mum build-to percentage of 80%
Interior Side Build-to-line none

Rear Setback none

Special Considerations

* Proposals for development of Parcel 6 should consider the adjacency
to City Walk when planning the uses and design of the ground floor.

* Parcel 6 is within the College Hill Historic District, which is listed
in the National Register of Historic Places. Proposals should be
designed to complement the historic context,

Note: Fullinvestigation of easements, eleva tions, and other external
constraints to development is the responsibility of the project
proponent.

Development Plan
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Parcel 8

Dimensional Regulations

Parcel Area 0.30 ac.
District East Side District
Minimum Building Height 2 stories

15' for non-residential uses;
12" for residential uses

-
~
-

Sy = \ —,."-’ Minimum Ground-Floor Story Height

City Walk
~ G P
_~ Maximum Building Height 6-stories

Primary Street and Secondary Street | Build-tozone of 0' to 8', with mini-

Build-to-line mum build-to percentage of 80%
Interior Side Build-to-line none
Rear Setback none

Special Considerations

+ Parcel 8 is within the College Hill Historic District, which is listed
in the National Register of Historic Places. Proposals should be
designed to complement the historic context.

Note: Full investigation of easements, elevations, and other external
constraints to development is the responsibility of the project
proponent.

50 Development Plan
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Dimensional Regulations

Parcel Area 0.56 ac.
District East Side District
Minimum Building Height 2 stories

15' for non-residential uses;

Minimum Ground-Floor Story Height TS for residentisl uses

Maximum Building Height 130"
Primary Street and Secondary Street | Build-to zone of 0' to 8', with mini-
Build-to-line mum build-to percentage of 80%
Interior Side Build-to-line none
Rear Setback none

Special Considerations

Parcel 8A is within the College Hill Historic District, which is listed
in the National Register of Historic Places. Proposals should be
designed to complement the historic context.

Note: Fullinvestigation of easements, elevations, and other external
constraints to development is the responsibility of the project
proponent.

Development Plan
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Parcel 9, Lot 1

Dimensional Regulations

Parcel Area 0.65 ac.
District East Side District
Minimum Building Height 2 stories

15' for non-residential uses;

Minimum Ground-Floor Story Height 12! for resideitial tises

Maximum Building Height 6 stories

Primary Street and Secondary Street | Build-tozone of 0' to 8', with mini-
Build-to-line mum build-to percentage of 80%
Interior Side Build-to-line none

Rear Setback none

Special Considerations

+ Parcel 9, Lat 1 is within the College Hill Historic District, which is

52

listed in the National Register of Historic Places. Proposals should be
designed to complement the historic context.

A publicly-accessible through-block pedestrian connection must be
provided along the boundary between Lot 1 and Lot 2 of Parcel 9,
connecting from Bessie Way to the pedestrian and hicycle trail. Land-
scape and ground-floor uses should be planned to encourage public
use of this pedestrian corridor.

City Walk runs adjacent to Parcel 9 Lot 1. Landscaping and ground
floor uses should be carefully considered along that edge of the
parcel in order to provide a welcoming environment for people using

City Walk.

Note: Full investigation of easements, elevations, and other external

constraints to development is the responsibility of the project
proponent.

Development Plan
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Development Plan

Dimensional Regulations

Parcel Area 0.41 ac.
District East Side District
Minimum Building Height 2 stories

15’ for non-residential uses;

Minimum Ground-Floor Story Height 12" for residential uses

Maximum Building Height 6 stories

Primary Street and Secondary Street | Build-to zone of 0' to 8', with mini-
Build-to-line mum build-to percentage of 80%
Interior Side Build-to-line none

Rear Setback none

Special Considerations

+ Parcel 9, Lots 1 & 2 are within the College Hill Historic District, which
is listed in the National Register of Historic Places. Proposals should
be designed to complement the historic context.

* A publicly-accessible through-block pedestrian connection must be
provided along the boundary between Lot 1 and Lot 2 of Parcel 9,
connecting from Bessie Way to City Walk. Landscape and ground-
floor uses should be planned to encourage public use of this pedes-
trian corridor.

* City Walk runs adjacent to Parcel 9. Landscaping and ground floor
uses should be carefully considered along that edge of the parcel in
order to provide a welcoming environment for people using City Walk.

Note: Fullinvestigation of easements, elevations, and other external
constraints to development is the responsibility of the project
proponent.
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Parcel 14

™~ NS

Providence
River

-

Approximate Area of Existing Grade Below DFE-1

Parcel Area

Parcel Boundary

Dimensional Regulations

Parcel Area 0.26 ac.
District West Side Riverfront District
Minimum Building Height 3 stories

15' for non-residential uses;

Minimum Ground-Floor Story Height 19% far residential uses

Maximum Building Height 130'
Primary Street and Secondary Street | Build-tozone of 0'to &', with mini-
Build-to-line mum build-to percentage of 80%
Interior Side Build-to-line none
Rear Setback none

Special Considerations

+ Existing grade of parcel is below DFE-1. Refer to Section 2.6 Flood
Resilience Standards for flood resilience design requirements.

+ A portion of this parcel is subject to an easement granted to the
Narragansett Bay Commission (NBC) due to the presence of subsur-
face infrastructure associated with NBC's Combined Sewer Overflow
tunnel, The infrastructure includes a stormwater storage tunnel
and lateral connections installed in bedrock beneath the property
at a depth of approximately 190 feet below the ground surface and
approximately 100 feet into bedrock. Development on these parcels
will require consideration of this infrastructure and coordination with
NBC.

Proposals for development of Parcel 14 should consider the adja-
cency to Riverwalk and the strong pedestrian and bicycle desire line
to and from the Michael S. Van Leesten Memorial Bridge and the
proximity to the 195 District Park when planning the uses and design
of the ground floor.

Note: Full investigation of easements, elevations, and other external
constraints to development is the responsibility of the project
proponent.

Development Plan
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N T
B \\ N\ Dimensional Regulations

\R N Parcel Area 0.05 ac.

Providence District West Side Riverfront District

River

Minimum Building Height 1 story

15' for non-residential uses;
12' for residential uses

Minimum Ground-Floor Story Height

Maximum Building Height 130’
Primary Street and Secondary Street | Build-ta zone of 0’ to 8', with mini-
Build-to-line mum build-to percentage of 80%
Interior Side Build-to-line none
Rear Setback none

Special Considerations

Existing grade of parcel is below DFE-1. Refer to Section 2.6 Flood
Resilience Standards for flood resilience design requirements.

AY
P E'_EV_‘,N,.‘aE ""‘;y Portions of this parcel is subject to an easement granted to the Narra-
— i ! : ndl gansett Bay Commission (NBC) due to the presence of subsurface in-
frastructure associated with NBC's Combined Sewer Overfiow tunnel.
The infrastructure includes a stormwater storage tunnel and lateral
cannections installed in bedrock beneath the property at a depth of
approximately 190 feet below the ground surface and approximately
100 feet into bedrock. Development on these parcels will require
consideration of this infrastructure and coordination with NBC.

» Proposals for development of Parcel 15 should consider the adja-
cency to Riverwalk and the strong pedestrian and bicycle desire line
to and from the Michael S. Van Leesten Memorial Bridge and the
proximity to the 195 District Park when planning the uses and design
of the ground floor.

Note: Fullinvestigation of easements, elevations, and other external
constraints to development is the responsibility of the project
/; proponent.

Approximate Area of Existing Grade Below DFE-1
Parcel Area

== Parcel Boundary

Development Plan
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Parcels 22 & 25 Lot 1

56

Approximate Area of Existing Grade Below DFE-1
Parcel Area

= Parcel Boundary

Dimensional Regulations

Parcel Area 1.55 ac.
District West Side Riverfront District
Minimum Building Height 3 stories

Minimum Ground-Floor Story Height

15' for non-residential uses;
12' for residential uses

Maximum Building Height

130°

Primary Street and Secondary Street | Build-to zone of 0" to 8', with mini-

Build-to-line mum build-to percentage of 80%
Interior Side Build-to-line none
Rear Setback none

Special Considerations

Residential uses are not permitted.

plaza.

A portion of the parcel sits below DFE-1. Refer to Section 2.6 Flood
Resilience Standards for flood resilience design requirements.

A publicly accessible through-block pedestrian connection must be
provided between Richmond Street, Clifford Street, and Dyer Street.

Landscape and ground-floor uses should be planned to encourage

public use of this pedestrian corridor and activate the Dyer Street

Note: Fullinvestigation of easements, elevations, and other external
constraints to development is the responsibility of the project

proponent.

Development Plan



Parcel 22 Lot 2

I-195 Redevelopment District

@

My

L2k Y

= Approximate Area of Existing Grade Below DFE-1

Parcel Area

= Parcel Boundary

Development Plan

Dimensional Regulations

Parcel Area 0.76 ac.
District West Side Riverfront District
Minimum Building Height 3 stories

15' for non-residential uses;

Minimum Ground-Floor Story Height 12" for residotital Uses

Maximum Building Height 130
Primary Street and Secondary Street | Build-to zone of 0' to 8', with mini-
Build-to-line mum build-to percentage of 80%
Interior Side Build-to-line none
Rear Setback none

Special Considerations

* A portion of the parcel sits below DFE-1. Refer to Section 2.6 Flood
Resilience Standards for flood resilience design requirements.

+ Residential uses are not permitted.

* Landscape and ground-floor uses should be planned to encourage
public use of this pedestrian corridor and activate the Dyer Street
plaza.

Note: Fullinvestigation of easements, elevations, and other external
constraints to development is the responsibility of the project
proponent.
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Parcel 22 Lot 5

A

=" Pavilion]

—\

Approximate Area of Existing Grade Below DFE-1

il

Parcel Area

== Parcel Boundary

Dimensional Regulations

Parcel Area 0.23 ac.
District West Side Riverfront District
Minimum Building Height 3 stories

15' for non-residential uses;

Minimum Ground-Floor Story Height 12" for residential uses

Maximum Building Height 130’
Primary Street and Secondary Street | Build-to zone of 0' to 8', with mini-
Build-to-line mum build-to percentage of 80%
Interior Side Build-to-line none
Rear Setback none

Special Considerations

+ Existing grade of parcel is below DFE-1. Refer to Section 2.6 Flood
Resilience Standards for flood resilience design requirements.

+ Residential uses are not permitted.

« The City Walk bicycle and pedestrian corridor runs down Elbow Street
along Parcel 22 Lot 5. The Elbow Street frontage should be prioritized
for active ground-floor uses, and landscaping should be coordinated
with the design of the Elbow Street corridor.

Note: Full investigation of easements, elevations, and other external
constraints to development is the responsibility of the project
proponent.

Development Plan
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Dimensional Regulations

Parcel Area 0.80 ac.
District West Side Riverfront District
Minimum Building Height 3 stories

15' for non-residential uses;

Minimum Ground-Floor Story Height 12 for rasidintial usss

Maximum Building Height 130’
Primary Street and Secondary Street | Build-to zone of 0" to 8', with mini-
Build-to-line mum build-to percentage of 80%
Interior Side Build-to-line none
Rear Setback none

Special Considerations

* The northern corner of the parcel sits below DFE-1. Refer to Section
2.6 Flood Resilience Standards for flood resilience design require-
ments.

* Residential uses are not permitted.

* A publicly accessible through-block pedestrian connection must be
provided between Clifford Street, and Dyer Street. Landscape and
ground-floor uses should be planned to encourage public use of this
pedestrian corridor and activate the Dyer Street plaza.

Note: Full investigation of easements, elevations, and other external
constraints to development is the responsibility of the project
praponent.

Approximate Area of Existing Grade Below DFE-1

(il

Parcel Area

=— Parcel Boundary

Development Plan
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Parcel 25 Lot 3

Dimensional Regulations

Parcel Area 1.07 ac.
District West Side Riverfront District
Minimum Building Height 3 stories

Minimum Ground-Floor Story Height

15' for non-residential uses;
12' for residential uses

Maximum Building Height

130°

Primary Street and Secondary Street | Build-to zone of 0' to 8', with mini-

Build-to-line mum build-to percentage of 80%
Interior Side Build-to-line none
Rear Setback none

Special Considerations

(il

Approximate Area of Existing Grade Below DFE-1
Parcel Area

Parcel Boundary

- Residential uses are not permitted.

prioritized for active ground-floor uses.

+ A portion of the parcel sits below DFE-1. Refer to Section 2.6 Flood
Resilience Standards for flood resilience design requirements.

- City Walk runs along two sides of Parcel 25 Lot 3,0n Richmond Street
and Elbow Street. Permeability through the block should be provided
for pedestrians, in order to connect Clifford Street with the existing
Dyer Street plaza adjacent to the Providence Innovation Center. Set-
backs should be provided along Richmond Street to allow for a more
generous pedestrian right-of-way and additional landscaping in the
public realm. The Richmond and Elbow Street frontages should be

Note: Full investigation of easements, elevations, and other external
constraints to development is the responsibility of the project

proponent.

Development Plan



Parcel 27

1-195 Redevelopment District

Development Plan

Dimensional Regulations

Parcel Area 0.51 ac.
District West Side River District
Minimum Building Height 3 stories

15’ for non-residential uses;

Minimum Ground-Floor Story Height 12 for residerial lisas

Maximum Building Height 160’
Primary Street and Secondary Street | Build-to zone of 0' to 8', with mini-
Build-to-line mum build-to percentage of 80%
Interior Side Build-to-line none
Rear Setback none

Special Considerations

* Residential uses are not permitted.

+ City Walk runs down Clifford and Richmond Street across from Parcel
27. The Clifford Street frontage should be prioritized for active ground
floor uses.

Note: Full investigation of easements, elevations, and other external
constraints to development is the responsibility of the project
proponent.
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Parcel 28

Dimensional Regulations

Parcel Area 1.25 ac.
District West Side Riverfront District
Minimum Building Height 3 stories

15' for non-residential uses;

Minimum Ground-Floor Story Height 9 for tasidantiaf tisas

Maximum Building Height 160’
Primary Street and Secondary Street | Build-to zone of 0' to 8', with mini-
Build-to-line mum build-to percentage of 80%
Interior Side Build-to-line none
Rear Setback none

Special Considerations

City Walk runs down Clifford Street along Parcel 28. The Clifford
Street frontage should be prioritized for active ground-floor uses.

Note: Full investigation of easements, elevations, and other external
constraints to development is the responsibility of the project
proponent.

Development Plan
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Parcel 30
\\\/

Dimensional Regulations

Parcel Area 0.59 ac.
District West Side Highway District
Minimum Building Height 6 stories

15' for non-residential uses;

Minimum Ground-Floor Story Height 19" for residantisl ses

Maximum Building Height 345
Primary Street and Secondary Street | Build-to zone of 0' to 8, with mini-
Build-to-line mum build-to percentage of 80%
Interior Side Build-to-line none
Rear Setback none

Special Considerations

* Chestnut Street frontage should be prioritized for active ground-floor
uses.

Note: Full investigation of easements, elevations, and other external
constraints to development is the responsibility of the project
proponent.

Development Plan
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Parcel 34

64

Dimensional Regulations

Parcel Area 1.47 ac.
District West Side Highway District
Minimum Building Height 6 stories

Minimum Ground-Floor Story Height

15' for non-residential uses;
12' for residential uses

Maximum Building Height

345

Primary Street and Secondary Street | Build-to zone of 0" to 8', with mini-

Build-to-line mum build-to percentage of 80%
Interior Side Build-to-line none
Rear Setback none

Special Considerations

+ City Walk runs down Clifford Street across from Parcel 34. The Clif-
ford Street frontage should be prioritized for active ground floor uses.

Note: Full investigation of easements, elevations, and other external
constraints to development is the responsibility of the project

proponent.

Development Plan
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Dimensional Regulations

Parcel Area 2.15 ac.
District West Side Highway District
Minimum Building Height 6 stories

15' for non-residential uses;

Minimum Ground-Floor Story Height e~

Maximum Building Height 345"
Primary Street and Secondary Street | Build-to zone of 0' to 8’, with mini-
Build-to-line mum build-to percentage of 80%
Interior Side Build-to-line none
Rear Setback none

Special Considerations

+  City Walk runs down Clifford Street along Parcel 35. The public realm
should be designed to engage City Walk through strategies such as
a more generous pedestrian right-of-way, additional landscaping,
pocket parks, etc. The Clifford Street frontage should be prioritized
for active ground floor uses.

Note: Fullinvestigation of easements, elevations, and other external
constraints to development is the responsibility of the project
proponent.

Development Plan
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66

Dimensional Regulations

Parcel Area

0.49 ac.

District

West Side Highway District

Minimum Building Height

6 stories

Minimum Ground-Floor Story Height

15' for non-residential uses;
12 for residential uses

Maximum Building Height

345'

Primary Street and Secondary Street
Build-to-line

Build-to zone of 0' to 8', with mini-
mum build-to percentage of 80%

Interior Side Build-to-line

none

Rear Setback

none

Note: Full investigation of easements, elevations, and other external
constraints to development is the responsibility of the project

proponent.

Development Plan



Parcel 41

1-195 Redevelopment District

~7

Dimensional Regulations

Parcel Area

0.29 ac.

District

West Side Highway District

Minimum Building Height

6 stories

Minimum Ground-Floor Story Height

15' for non-residential uses;
12' for residential uses

Maximum Building Height

345’

Primary Street and Secondary Street
Build-to-line

Build-to zone of 0' to 8', with mini-
mum build-to percentage of 80%

Interior Side Build-to-line

none

Rear Setback

Development Plan

none

Note: Full investigation of easements, elevations, and other external
constraints to development is the responsibility of the project

proponent.
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Parcel 42

777

-

-
e

City Walk

P
-

Park

-
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&

Pavilion

il

Parcel Area

Parcel Boundary

Approximate Area of Existing Grade Below DFE-1

Dimensional Regulations

Parcel Area 0.85 ac.

District West Side Riverfront District

Minimum Building Height 3 stories

15' for non-residential uses;

Minimum Ground-Floor Story Height D rrasidental st

130" by right;

Maximum Building heigit 166.5" with density bonus

Primary Street and Secondary Street | Build-to zone of 0' to 8', with mini-

Build-to-line mum build-to percentage of 80%
Interior Side Build-to-line none
Rear Setback none

Special Considerations

+ Existing grade of parcel is fully or partially below DFE-1. Refer to
Section 2.6 Flood Resilience Standards for flood resilience design
requirements.

* The City Walk bicycle and pedestrian corridor defines the southern
boundary of Parcel 42, connecting Elbow Street to the Michael S.
Van Leesten Memorial Bridge. The first three floors of the build-
ing must be set back 20' from this corridar, but the building can
cantilever over that area at the fourth floor and above. Portions of
the frontage adjacent to this corridor should be prioritized for active
ground-floor uses, and the open space between this corridor and the
building should be designed to allow for flexible seating that creates
a sense of fluidity between 195 District Park and space controlled by
building tenants.

+ Proposals will be eligible for a density bonus allowing up to 166.5'
in building height if they include at least 20,000 gross square feet of
Cultural or Civic Uses (as defined in Appendix 4.1 Glossary of Defini-
tions), at least 8,000 of which must be on the ground floor.

Note: Full investigation of easements, elevations, and other external
constraints to development is the responsibility of the project
proponent.

Development Plan
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I-195 Redevelopment District

4.1

H )
ot

Glossary of

Cultural or Civic Use

A Cultural or Civic Use is defined as a facility open to the
public that provides access to civic or cultural exhibits and
activities including, but not limited to, museums, cultural cen-
ters, performance venues, non-commercial galleries, historical
societies, and libraries. A Civic or Cultural Use may include
retail sales of related items and restaurants as ancillary uses.

Awning

As defined in the City of Providence Zoning Ordinance, an
Awning is a roof-like structure typically made of cloth, metal,
or other material attached to a frame that extends from and
is supported by a building. Awnings are typically erected over
a window, doorway, or building front and they may be raised
or retracted to a position adjacent to the building. Within the
Development Plan, an Awning is further limited to mean fabric
that is retractable or stretched on a frame projecting out from
a building.

Banner

As defined in the City of Providence Zoning Ordinance, a Ban-
ner is a sign that is printed or displayed upon flexible material
with or without frames.

Canopy

As defined in the City of Providence Zoning Ordinance, a
Canopy is a permanent structure that serves as an overhang-
ing shelter or shade that forms the structure of a building and
is constructed in such a manner as to allow pedestrians or
vehicles to pass underneath. Within the Development Plan, a
Canopy is further limited to mean a fixed, rigid overhead roof or
structure projecting out from a building that is tied into the core
and shell structure of the building.

efin

itions

Marquee

As defined in the City of Providence Zoning Ordinance, a
Marquee is a permanent roof-like structure constructed of
durable material extending from the wall of a structure with no
supports extending to the ground with a portion of the struc-
ture dedicated to sign area that may be changed. Within the
Development Plan, a Marquee is further limited to mean a tall
roof-like canopy that projects over the entrance to a building,
allows for changes on the facia of the Marguee, and is internal-
ly lit. Marquees are typically associated with theaters, hotels, or
other entertainment venues and are taller and more substantial
than a conventional canopy.

Ground Floor Design Flood Elevation (DFE-1)

The Ground Floor Design Flood Elevation (DFE-1) is the re-
quired minimum elevation for the ground floor of new devel-
opment in the District, and is set at 9.3' NAVD88, which is the
highest recorded level of precipitation-related flooding in the
Providence River.

Second Floor Design Flood Elevation (DFE-2)

The Second Floor Design Flood Elevation (DFE-2) is the
required minimum elevation for the second story and critical
systems of new development in the District, and is set at 24.5'
NAVD88 to address future storm surge exacerbated by sea
level rise in the event that the Fox Point Hurricane Barrier is
inoperable or overtopped. The use of flood resistant materials
and provisions for flood vents or their future installation below
DFE-2 is encouraged.

Development Plan
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HISTORIC DISTRICTS % Historic District

Many parcels in the I-195 Redevelopment District are within or ad-
jacent to historic districts listed in the National Register of Historic
Places. Special consideration should be taken with the develop-
ment of these parcels, to ensure that the design of new buildings is
complementary with the surrounding context.
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4.3 Flood Resilience Map

-

FLOOD RESILIENCE E| Approximate Area
. L . of Existing Grade
Many parcels in the 1-195 Redevelopment District are partially or Below DFE-1

entirely below DFE-1 as defined in Section 2.6 Flood Resilience
Standards. Developers proposing on parcels with an existing grade
that is partially or fully below DFE-1 should conceptualize their
project in response to this increased flood risk.

Development Plan 75



76
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4.4 Flood Resilience Resources

A. EMERGING FLOOD RESILIENCE BEST PRACTICES
AND DEFINITIONS

1.

Design Flood Elevation (DFE)

Design Flood Elevations (DFEs) are required minimum floor
heights based on existing and future flood conditions. In the
District, there are two DFEs: DFE-1 for the ground floor height
and DFE-2 for the second floor and critical infrastructure.

NAVD88

The North American Vertical Datum of 1988 (NAVD 88) is the
vertical control datum leveling network that denotes the fixed
the height of the primary tidal benchmarks in North America.

Wet Floodproofing

Wet floodproofing allows water to enter and exit non-habitable
portions of a building through engineered flood vents. This
strategy minimizes structural damage from flood waters by
equalizing hydrostatic pressure on the walls of the building,
and prevents damage from buoyancy or uplift forces. In the
District, wet floodproofing is allowed in low-occupancy service
spaces such as loading and parking.

Dry Floodproofing

Dry floodproofing is a system of multiple components aimed at 7
inhibiting water from entering a structure. This techniqueis ap-  Deployable flood barriers are part of a dry floodproofing strategy.
propriate for low flood elevations and non-residential portions
of structures that can withstand hydrostatic and hydrodynamic
loads imposed by flooding. Dry floodproofing strategies may

o

Critical mechanical systems include:

include watertight enclosures for openings, including barriers +  Boilers and furnaces;

that might require human intervention in advance of a storm +  Air-handlers, condenser units, and heat pumps;
event; membranes and sealants to reduce seepage; structural »  Ductwork and piping;

reinforcement to wall assemblies and foundations; drainage +  Fuel storage tanks;

and pumping systems with backup power to control water +  Water heaters;

intrusion; check valves to prevent the entrance of water or - Fire-suppression sprinkler controls; and,

waste through plumbing systems; and flood doors and egress »  Elevator machine rooms.

requirements. In the District, dry floodproofing may be allowed e : : )

. . Critical electrical systems include:
for lobbies or entries below DFE-1.

Electrical panels and switchgear;

Critical infrastructure *  Backup generators;

Alarm controls and components;
+  Service wiring and receptacles;

Building management systems;
+  Telecommunications equipment;
+  Electric and gas meters; and,

«  Utility shut-off switches.

Building utility systems, including electrical and mechanical
equipment that would create costly damage, safety risks, and
loss of habitability and other critical building functions during a
flood event are considered critical Infrastructure.

Development Plan



Flood-Resistant Materials

Flood damage-resistant materials are any building materials,
components or systems capable of withstanding direct and
prolonged contact with floodwaters without sustaining signifi-
cant damage. They include materials such as concrete, stone,
masonry block, ceramic and clay tile, pressure-treated and
naturally decay-resistant lumber, epoxy paints, and metal. In
addition to resisting damage from flood waters, these materi-
als are relatively easy to clean after flood waters have receded.

Additional Resources:

- FEMA Technical Bulletin 2: Flood Damage Resistant Ma-
terials Requirements

= Building Science Corporation, BSD-111: Flood and Hurri-
cane Resistant Buildings

Landscape Interventions

There are many landscape intervention strategies to improve
site and district-level resilience. At a minimum, landscapes
should be designed to maximize stormwater absorption, re-
quire minimal irrigation or fertilizer, and be salt-tolerant where
applicable. Plant species with robust root systems will hold sail
and land best, preventing severe erosion damage. Care should
be taken to utilize native plant species that contribute to the
greater ecosystem of which the District is a part.

On-site Energy Production

In the event of a blackout, providing reliable on-site backup
power for continued operation of critical services can greatly
increase a building's resilience. A backup power system in-
cludes generation equipment, dedicated circuitry, and associat-
ed components.

Examples of power generation include:

+  Fuel-fired generator, with stored fuel supply;

«  Piped natural gas generator,

«  Bi-modal solar-electric system with battery storage;

* Combined Heat and Power, sometimes referred to as co-
generation, or "cogen," which generates on-site electricity
and utilizes waste thermal energy for heating end-uses.

Each of the above systems vary in terms of energy or fuel
storage, quantity of emissions, fuel cost, and safety and
maintenance. Because emergency generators sit idle 99% of
the time, they may not be as reliable in the event of interrupted
power as systems that are designed for continued use, such as
solar-electric with storage and cogen.

Additional Resources:

+  Enterprise Community Partners, Inc., Ready to Respond:
Strategies for Multifamily Building Resilience

+ LEED Resilient Design Pilot Credit: Passive Survivability
and Back-up Power During Disruptions

Development Plan
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Landscape interventions designed to maximize stormwater absorbtion con-
tribute to site, district, and watershed resilience.

+  FEMA Recovery Advisory 2: Reducing Flood Effects in
Critical Facilities

Backup Water Management

Backup water management systems, including sump pumps
and backflow preventers, protect buildings from unintended
flood water entry in conjunction with floodproofing strategies.
Sump pumps remove water from below-grade spaces. They
also remove water from an underdrain system at the perimeter
of below-grade walls or under a slab on grade. Sewage Back-
flow Prevention options include check, gate, and dual backflow
valves.

Additional Resources:

*  FEMA P-348, Edition 2: Protecting Utility Systems from
Flood Damage

[
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B. FLOOD RESILIENCE CONTEXT AND APPROACH 2. Lifespan & Timespan

1. Goals for the Guidelines Development in the District requires design considerations for
long-lifespan commercial and residential buildings. It is more
efficient to elevate buildings and critical infrastructure before

buildings are built. For this reason, our methodology looks out
to 2100.

As stated in Section 2.6, the goal of flood resilience stan-
dards in the District is to balance best practices for long-term
flood protection with reasonable development feasibility and
public realm benefit. Flood resilience standards are specific
to the District's unique geography and hydrology, and include

; : 3. Data Sources
measures to protect new structures from both the immediate A BOMNCE

threats of riverine and tidal flooding, as well as longer-term a. Sealevel Rise

risk associated with storm surges. The District sits in a FEMA Due to the complex and dynamic variables that contrib-
X zone and is not subject to FEMA flood requirements, as it is ute to sea level rise, projections beyond 2050 are more
protected by a hurricane barrier. Requirements set forth in this uncertain than near-term projections. The latest NOAA
document reflect risk from existing riverine flooding events and sea level scenarios for Providence, Rl in the year 2100
future sea level rise, neither of which are currently accounted range between 1.6 feet and 6.3 feet of SLR above mean
for in FEMA regulations. higher highwater. Our methodology designs for the NOAA

Intermediate Curve of 3.74 feet of SLR.

I
50 | |
!
45
2100
4.0 High 191
Intermediate High  1.49
35 | Intermediate 1.14 3
Intermediate Low  0.68 = i

30 | Low 0.48 et

Sea Level Change (m)

2020 2040 2060 2080 2100 2120 2140

2022 NOAA SLR projections for the year 2100 in Providence. Year
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STORMTOOLS inundation mapping for 3' SLR and 100yr storm.

b. Riverine Flood Data
The highest recorded high water from a precipitation
event in the Providence River was an elevation of 9.29
feet NAVD88 during the 2010 Great Floods—a series of
rainstorms hetween February and March of that year that
inundated the state with stormwater.

Source: Flood Insurance Study: Providence Coun-

ty, Rhode Island (All Jurisdictions). FIS Number
444007CV001C:Federal Emergency Management Agency,
2015. https://tinyurl.com/4v9rfz5k

c. Storm Surge
CRMC STORMTOOLS is a model to map storm inundation
for varying return period storms across all of Rhode Is-
land's coastal waters. Predictions show water extent and
depth at any given point for nuisance floods (1, 3, 5, and
10 year intervals) and 25-, 50-, 100-, and 500-year storm
scenarios at a 95% confidence interval. Sea level rise of
1,2, 3,5,and 7 feet on its own as well as combined with
each storm scenario is also modeled. Inundation levels
in the District vary depending on topography and other
factors, but averages 23' for District parcels.

Source: STORMTOOLS https://starmtools-mainpage-crc-
uri.hub.arcgis.com/

Special Consideration: Hurricane Barrier

Currently, the Fox Point Hurricane Protection Barrier closes to
protect downtown Providence from storm surge events. During
a storm event in which the barrier is deployed, large pumps pull
water from the Providence River that would otherwise accumu-
late upstream of the barrier. The pumps are operated to keep
the upstream water levels at or below 8.87' NAVD88.

The barrier was built to protect from storm surges up to 20',

Development Plan
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but was not built to withstand the level of sea level rise that we
may see in 50 or more years, and the barrier does not close for
regular tidal flooding events. The City of Providence and State
of Rhode Island are due to make a decision by 2050 about
redesigning the barrier to accommodate for both aging infra-
structure and increased sea level rise that could overwhelm the
barrier.

Because of the severity of worst-case scenarios identified by
STORMTOOLS modeling (in the event of barrier failure during
a major storm event) our methodology does include designing
for this rare scenario.

Design Flood Elevations

a. DFE-1
Most flood events will be due to tidal and riverine flood-
ing, both of which are not currently mitigated by the
hurricane barrier. Of these risks, riverine flooding is more
immediate, higher in elevation, and less predictable.

Accordingly, the DFE-1 is set at 9.3' NAVD88, just above
the historic high river mark recorded in the Providence
River due to heavy rainfall over the course of several
months in 2010. This elevation provides protection for
near-term worst case scenarios, as well as long-term pro-
tection from tidal flooding exacerbated by sea level rise.

b. DFE-2
While the hurricane barrier is anticipated to provide
protection from storm surges for the near term, there
remains some measure of risk associated with extreme
weather events. If the barrier gates are not operable, or
sea level rise in conjunction with a storm surge causes
the barrier to be overtopped, flooding could be extensive.
While the risk of these is either low or far in the future, it
is nonetheless prudent to take measures to ensure that
buildings in the District are at least resilient, if not protect-
ed, in the event of a barrier breach.

This approach allows the development parcels to assume
a measure of protection by the barrier for storm surges,
but encourages an additional layer of long-term resil-
ience by requiring that critical infrastructure and building
mechanical systems be placed out of harm's way. The ob-
jective is to ensure that while some damage to the ground
level may occur, the overall building and its occupancy are
not completely compromised.

|
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EXHIBIT B
I-195 REDEVELOPMENT DISTRICT
RESOLUTION REGARDING FISCAL YEAR 2023 AUDIT

September 20, 2023

VOTED: That the Audit of the District for fiscal year ended June 30, 2023, prepared by Marcum
LLP, a copy of which is attached hereto as Exhibit A, be and is hereby accepted and

adopted.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT

To the Board of Commissioners
I-195 Redevelopment District

Opinion

Thent District (the “District™), a
thended June 30, 2023 and 2022,
mprise the District’s basic

We have audited the financial statements of the 1-195 Redevel;
component unit of the State of Rhode Island, as of and for th
and the related notes to the financial statements, which
financial statements as listed in the table of contents. 4§

rred to above present fairly, in all
istrict, as of June 30, 2023 and 2022,
lows thereof for the years then ended
i the United States of America.

In our opinion, the accompanying financial state
material respects, the respective financial position of 1
and the respective changes in the financial pd
in accordance with accounting principles gen

Basis for Opinion

TibeaLiting standards generally accepted in the United
the standards applicable to financial audits contained
ed by the Comptroller General of the United States. Our
s ar¢ further deseribed in the Auvditors® Responsibilities for
s section of our report. We are required to be independent of
the District and to meet o gethical responsibilities, in accordance with the relevant ethical
requirements relating to our aigit. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

We conducted our audit in acco]
States of America (“GA
in Government Auditingg

responsibilities undeg
the Audit of the Finan

Emphasis of Matter

As discussed in Note 9 to the financial statements, the District is dependent upon annual
appropriations by the General Assembly of the State of Rhode Island and transfers from the State
of Rhode Island to fund its operating expenses and the debt service on its outstanding bonds. Our
opinion is not modified with respect to this matter.




Responsibilities of Management for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America, and for
the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and
fair presentation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to
fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is required to evaluate whether there are
conditions or events, considered in the aggregate, that raise substantial doubt about the District's
ability to continue as a going concern for twelve months beyond the financial statement date,
including any currently known information that may raise substantial doubt shortly thereafter.

to issue an auditors' report
Ayance but is not absolute

nd perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, Such
on a test basis, evidence regarding the amounts and disclosures

to fraud or error, d4gh
procedures include e
in the financial stateme

e obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an
opinion on the effectiveness of the District's internal control. Accordingly, no such opinion is
expressed.

» cvaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant
accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluate the overall presentation of
the financial statements,

oot GODCIDdewihethet,...in.our. judgment,. thete..are..conditians. .orevents, . considered..in. the.
aggregate, that raise substantial doubt about the District's ability to continue as a going

concern for a reasonable period of time.
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We are required to communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other
matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit, significant audit findings, and certain internal
control related matters that we identified during the audit.

Required Supplementary Information

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the
management’s discussion and analysis on pages 5 to 11 be presented to supplement the basic
financial statements. Such information is the responsibility of management and, although not a
part of the basic financial statements, is required by the Governmental Accounting Standards
Board who considers it to be an essential part of financial reporting for placing the basic financial
statements in an appropriate operational, economic, or historical context. We have applied certain
limited procedures to the required supplementary information in accordance with auditing
standards generally accepted in the United States of America, which consisted of inquiries of
management about the methods of preparing the information add comparing the information for
consistency with management's responses to our inquiries, thefbasie financial statements, and other
knowledge we obtained during our audit of the basic Fn@lﬁm statéments. We do not express an
opinion or provide any assurance on the information be juse the limit &ptocedllres do not provide

us with sufficient evidence to express an opinion orprovide any assurance.

Supplementary Information

Our audit was conducted for the pur pose Of‘%
collectlvely comprise the District's b 1%

cial statements. The information has been subjected to the
auditing plocedures appgled m*tlfg au ta@f the basic financial statements and certain additional
procedures mcludm’gﬁ omparing’ (" nd ré’éonenlmg Such l|1f0rlnat10n dlrectly to the undet Iym0

statements themselves, and ;ﬁ,«éddstlonal procedmes in accordance with auditing standards
generally accepted in the "United States of America. In our opinion, the accompanying
supplementary information is fairly stated, in all material respects, in relation to the basic financial
statements as a whole.

Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated
September XX, 2023 on our consideration of the District's internal control over financial reporting
and on our tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts. and grant
agreements and other matters. The purpose of that report is solely to describe the scope of our
testing of internal control over financial reporting and compliance and the results of that testing,
and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the District's internal control over financial
reporting or on compliance.



That report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing
Standards in considering the District's internal control over financial reporting and compliance.

Providence, RI

September XX, 2023




I-195 REDEVELOPMENT DISTRICT
(A COMPONENT UNIT OF THE STATE OF RHODE ISLAND)

MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

FOR THE YEARS ENDED JUNE 30, 2023 AND 2022

As management of the I-195 Redevelopment District (the “District™), a component unit of the State
of Rhode Island (the “State™), we offer readers of the District’s financial statements this narrative
overview and analysis of the financial activities of the District for the years ended June 30, 2023
and 2022. The District’s financial statements, accompanying notes, and supplementary
information should be read in conjunction with the following discussion.

INTRODUCTION

The District was created on July 9, 2011, by the Rhode Isl
Chapter 64 of Title 42 of the General Laws of Rhode Isla
oversee, plan, implement, and administer the areas withi

(“District™), including redeveloping the land reclaimed frorfi¥l
Bridge projects.

d General Assembly under
¢ District was established to
195 Redevelopment District

The State funded significant improvements to the to piepare the land for sale and ultimately
for redevelopment. To the extent such costs do not m o requlrements for capltahzatmn under
accounting prmmples generally accepted in :
reflected in the carrying value of the land as rd;
2013, the Rhode Island Commerce Corty

As of June 30, 2023, the Distri
land. Two projects were
Parcel 28 containing apEfo |

St pr ject on Parcel 6 that includes 62 residential units (half of
3,000-SF grocery store, and approximately 10,000-SF of
dse of the two-phase Parcel 9 project closed and broke ground

5 66 mixed-income residential units, a 6,900-SF childcare center,

which are workforce %
additional retail space.
in June 2023; the project col
and 1,100-SF of retail space.

Finally, the District executed Purchase and Sale Agreements for three projects in fiscal year 2023:
Lot 3 of Parcel 25, Parcel 2, and Parcels 8 and 8a. The future Rhode Island State Laboratories and
Center for Life Sciences will be constructed on Lot 3 of Parcel 25. This project will include an
approximately 212,000-SF lab facility to be anchored by the Rhode Island State Health Lab and
Brown Univetsity with additional space for private tenants. A mixed-use development with
approximately 170 residential units, 8,000 SF of ground floor retail, and subsurface parking is
proposed for Parcel 2, and a mixed-use project that will house the corporate headquarters of
BankRI and approximately 100 mixed-income residential units is proposed for Parcels 8 and 8a.

As part of the original I-195 relocation, three parcels of land were designated as open space. The
State completed construction of the seven-acre park, 195 District Park (Park) in 2021 and the
District subsequently took responsibility for all Park maintenance and operations. In 2022, the
Park had approximately 5,000 visits per day and nearly one million annual visits. The Park hosted

5




1-195 REDEVELOPMENT DISTRICT
(A COMPONENT UNIT OF THE STATE OF RHODE ISLAND)

MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

FOR THE YEARS ENDED JUNE 34, 2023 AND 2022

90 events over the summer and fall of 2022 and has 130 events planned for the 2023 season. A
freestanding pavilion is currently in development to serve the Park which will include food and
beverage services, support space for park operations, and public restrooms. The project will also
include infrastructure upgrades such as WiFi and enhanced electrical service. The District received
$4 million in funding from the 2021 Beach, Clean Water, and Green Bond to construct the pavilion.

There are several revenue sources outside of general revenue appropriations from the State to
operate the Park including an annual assessment on completed projects in the District documented
in a Declaration of Covenants, programming fees, and donations ggd sponsorships. The Marc A.
Crisafulli Economic Development Act passed by the Rhode Jgland General Assembly in 2021
authorized the Commission to enter info a park naming righg§ageeement for up to 20 years with

These include application fees for development proje
land for uses such as construction staging, and the co

In 2011, the General Assembly establis edevelopment Project Fund (RIGL 42-

for specific uses, including, but not limited to,
and acquisition, and public infrastructure and
bly has funded $28,000,000 for the Project Fund.
Hocated to allowable uses. Note 7 provides more details

capital investments, filling proj
facilities. As of June 30, 2023,
Of this amount, $25,846,000:hs

OVERVIEW OF THE F1 WEMENTS

This discussion and analy ntended to serve as an introduction to the District’s financial

statements.

The District engages only in business-type activities, that is, activities that are financed in whole
or in part by charges to external parties for services, As a result, the District’s basic financial
statements include the statements of net position; the statements of revenues, expenses, and
changes in net position; the statements of cash flows; and the notes to the financial statements,
These basic financial statements are designed to provide readers with a broad overview of the
District’s finances, in 2 manner similar to a private-sector business,

" he statements of net position presents detail-on-the District’s assets and “deferred outflows of -

resoutces, and liabilities and deferred inflows of resources, with the difference between the two
reported as net position. Changes in the District’s net position serve as a useful indicator of whether
the District’s net position is improving or deteriorating. Readers should also consider other non-
- financial factors when evaluating the District’s net-position. The statements of revenues, expenses,




1-195 REDEVELOPMENT DISTRICT
(A COMPONENT UNIT OF THE STATE OF RHODE ISLAND)

MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

FOR THE YEARS ENDED JUNE 30, 2023 AND 2022

and changes in net position present information on how the District’s net position changed during
the year.

All assets, liabilities, and changes in net position are reported as soon as the underlying event
affecting the asset or liability or deferred outflow or inflow, and resulting change in net position
occurs, regardless of the timing of when the cash is received or paid (accrual basis of accounting
for governmental entities). Consequently, certain revenues and expenses reported in the statements
of revenues, expenses, and changes in net position will result in cash flows in future periods.

2023 FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

Total liabilities exceeded total assets by $22,936,393

Restricted assets include cash amounts for the followingg
Project Fund, $264,015 for building permit fees t
Redevelopment District, $720,422 for Park use,
unrestricted net deficit of the 1-195 Redeveloy
deficit position is primarily due to $30,055,60

Total operating loss for 2023 was $3
the operating loss for 2022. The
the remaining loss was from th
to the State appropriation inco
District operating expen
to approved projects fi

i amount of $2,255,219. Operating loss is due
| non-operatmg revenue but it is used to pay for
t Fund oss is due to the obligation to fulfill commitments

Total non-operating tions revenue totaled $1,842,224 in 2023, an increase of
$492,155 when compared ¥ This increase is due to the increase in the State appropriation
for operations and capital pf and some carryover income from the fiscal year 2022 capital
appropriation.

Total net non-operating revenue for 2023 totaled $612,974 compared to net non-operating revenue
of $996,577 for 2022. While there was an increase in the State appropriations, there was a
significant increase in bond interest expenses which led to a decrease in non-operating revenue
year over year.

Transfers from the State for principal and interest due on the District’s bonds in 2023 were
$3,032,632, an increase of $880,367 when compared to 2022. This increase is attributed to an
increase in interest rates. Although there was one property sale in fiscal year 2023, due to the deal
structure that included selier financing with the purchase price paid over time, there were not any
net proceeds at closing after transaction expenses were paid and therefore the sale did not
contribute to the bond principal payment.

The total net position increased by $472,903 primarily due to the reduction in the bond payable.



1-195 REDEVELOPMENT DISTRICT
(A COMPONENT UNIT OF THE STATE OF RHODE ISLAND)

MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

FOR THE YEARS ENDED JUNE 30, 2023 AND 2022

2022 FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

Total Habilities exceeded total assets by $23,409,296 (net deficit position) at June 30, 2022, Assets
comprised of $7,655,266 restricted for the 1-195 Redevelopment Project Fund, $27,373 restricted
for the City of Providence for building permit fees, $342,428 restricted for Park use, and
$31,434,363 is the unrestricted net deficit of the I-195 Redevelopment District Operating Fund.
The current year net deficit position is primarily due to $31,990,000 in bonded debt.

82,319 when compared to the
$1,878 of the total loss whereas
,309. Operating loss is due to
commitments to approved

projects from the Project Fund.

Total non-operating State appropriations revenue& M.350,069 in 2022, an increase of
$325,186 when compared to 2021.

Total net non-operating revenue for 2022 tof; Cappared to net non-operating revenue
of $634,179 for 2021. This change results f i
the state appropriations from the B

Transfers from the State for
$2,152,265, an increase of $1




1-195 REDEVELOPMENT DISTRICT
(A COMPONENT UNIT OF THE STATE OF RHODE ISLAND)

MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

FOR THE YEARS ENDED JUNE 30, 2023 AND 2022

CONDENSED COMPARATIVE INFORMATION

The following table reflects a summary of changes in certain balances in the statements of net
position (in thousands):

Increase (Decrease)

2023 2022 2021 2023 v2022 2022 v 2021
Net Position (Deficit)
Current Assets $ 7,856 $ 8,961 § (1,105) $ (767) !
Noncurrent assets 1,124 560 564 73 |
Total Assets 8,980 (541) (694)
Current Liabilities 3,947 1,071 (224)
Noncurrent liabilities 27,970 (2,085) (1,935)
Total Liabilities 31,917 (1,014) (2,159)

Net Deficit Position $ \ 473 $ 1,465

The following table reflects a &t Jimnges in certain balances in the statements of
revenues, expenses and ¢ eg in1ngg position (in thousands):

Increase {Decrease)

2022 2021 2023 v2022 2022 v2021
Changes in Net
Deficit Positiont
Operating revenues ~ § 1,236 $ 703 $ 453 $ 533 % 250
Operating expenses 4,501 2,387 2,909 2,114 (522)
Gain on sale
of property 92 - 90 92 (90)
Operating Loss 3,173) (1,684) (2,366) (1,489) 682
Nonoperating Revenues
(Expenses) 613 997 634 (384) 363
Contributions and
Transfers 3,033 2,152 1,979 881 173
Changes in Net
Deficit Position $ 473 § 1,465 § 247 § (992) $ 1,218




1-195 REDEVELOPMENT DISTRICT
(A COMPONENT UNIT OF THE STATE OF RHODE ISLAND)

MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

FOR THE YEARS ENDED JUNE 30, 2023 AND 2022

2023 FINANCIAL ANALYSIS

Total assets of the District decreased by $541,642 during 2023. This net decrease is due to
decreases in restricted cash disbursed as project development incentives from the Project Fund and
the increase in cash held for the Park because of an increase in assessments and sponsorship funds.

Total liabilities decreased by $1,014,545 due to payments made on the 2013 Series A Bonds of
$1,935,000 net an increase in accrued expenses in the amount of $265,796 relating to an increase
in accrued interest due to increased interest rates, an increase of $566,894 of unearned revenue,
and an increase in accounts payable of $91,940 due to thegetrrent status of a number of
development projects, the park pavilion, and other park imp nents that were occurring at the
end of the fiscal year.

2023 OPERATING ACTIVITY

The District had operating revenues of $1,236,207 fo
$702,813 in year ended June 30, 2022. This} i
park activity, including assessments, event ;
District has implemented other revenue sour
constructlon stagmg, estabhshmg aplf

ar ended June 30, 2023, compared to
ainly to an increase in revenue from
d sponsorships. Add1t1onal]y, the

Total operating expenses incre
development incentives in al

during 2023 due to an increase in project
f $1,752,910 and an increase in spending on due diligence
and future development.

$3,172,703 in 2023 as compared to $1,683,987 in 2022. The
swwments of Project Fund commitments. It is worth noting, the
of revenue sources to assist with its growing operational needs.

The operating loss of
increase is due to the i
District has established a nu i

On June 2, 2023, the District sold a 27,834-SF lot, Parcel 9 Lot 1. The majority of the purchase
price is structured as seller financing to be paid on or before June 1, 2043. The gain on the sale of
this parcel is $92,011.

. 2022 FINANCIAL ANALYSIS

Total assets of the District decreased by $693,776 during 2022. This net decrease is due to
decreases in restricted cash, paid out as project development incentives from the Project Fund.

Total liabilities decreased by $2,158,631 due to payments macde on the 2013 Series A Bonds of
$1,790,000 net, an increase in accrued expenses of $170,811 relating to an increase in accrued
interest due to increased interest rates, accrued bnefit wages due to increased paid time off benefits
associated with increased staffing and an increase in accounts payable of $142, 385 relating to a
park improvement project that completed at the end of'the fiscal year.
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I-195 REDEVELOPMENT DISTRICT
(A COMPONENT UNIT OF THE STATE OF RHODE ISLAND)

MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

FOR THE YEARS ENDED JUNE 30, 2023 AND 2022

2022 OPERATING ACTIVITY

The District had operating revenues of $702,813 for the year ended June 30, 2022, compared to
$452,884 in year ended June 30, 2021 due mainly to the an increase in revenue from park activity,
including assessments, event fees, and donations and sponsorships. Additionally, the District has
implemented othet revenue sources through license fees for temporary uses such as construction
staging, establishing apphcatlon fees for development projects, and the collection of bmldmg
permit fees for projects in the District.

Total operating expenses decreased $522,342 during 2022 du & a decrease year over year in

project development incentives of $887,857.

The operating loss of the District was $1,683,987 in 2 10 $2,366,506 in 2021. It
is worth noting, the District has established a numberdPrevenue sourcésgo assist with its growing
operational needs. It is the District’s intention to 0 increase revenue through sources
outside of state appropriations in order to reduce reli the state for funding its operations

On June 30, 2022, the District purchased a cent to Parcels 14 and 15 from the
Rhode Island Department of Transportatlon 0 the parcel was combined with Parcels

on the economy, including the real estate market. It is
unknown what negativ 11 occur in the long term and how it will shape the real estate

market.

The State budget will undoubtedly also be impacted by COVID-19, which could affect State
budget appropriations to the I-195 Redevelopment District. A decrease in appropriations from the
State will have dire consequences for its operations as it is responsible for the operation and
maintenance of a seven-acre park, which will increase operation expenditures significantly. There
is an annual assessment on each property sold in the District to underwrite park operations,
however the park operations budget will not be fully funded until the District build-out is complete.

REQUESTS FOR INFORMATION

This financial report is designed as a general overview of the District’s financial picture for
external and internal stakeholders. Questions concerning any of the information provided in this
report or public requests for information should be addressed to the Executive Director, I-195
Redevelopment District, 225 Dyer Street, 4™ Floor, Providence, Rhode Island 02903.
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I-195 REDEVELOPMENT DISTRICT

(A COMPONENT UNIT OF THE STATE OF RHODE ISLAND)

STATEMENTS OF NET POSITION

JUNE 30, 2023 AND 2022
2023 2022
Operating Fund  Project Fund Total Operating Fund _ Project Fund Total
Assets
Current Assects

Cash $ 860,199 % - 5 860,199 § 458853 % - % 458,853

Cash, restricted 1,079,929 5477318 6,557,247 386,600 7,793,783 8,180,392

Accounts receivable 164,755 - 164,755 124,237 - 124,237

Prepaid expenses 86,958 - 86,958 84,922 - 84,922

Due from State 176,638 - 176,638 112,753 -- 112,753

Other current assets 3,714 6,585 10,299 - -- -
Total Current Assets 2,372,193 5,483,903 7,856,096 7,793,783 8.961,157
Noncurrent Assets

Notes receivable 99,800 . - -

Consfruction in progress 471,332 -- - -

Park Land 85,025 - - 85,025

Land held for sale 236471 231,668 244,184 231,668 475,852
Total Noncurrent Assets 892,628 231,668 326,209 231,668 560,877
Total Assets 3,264,821 5,715,5 1,496,583 8025451 9,522,034
Liabilities
Current Liabilities

Current portion,
long-term debt 2,085 0807 2,085,000 1,935,000 - 1,935,000

Accounts payable 431,201 184,780 154,481 339,261

Accrued expenses 580,190 314394 - 314,394

Due to City of Providence 266,692 21,867 -- 21,867

Deposit on Parcet 42 -- 249,000 - 249,000

Interfind balances ; (8.316) -- 15,964 (15,964) -

Unearned revenue, restricied 3 - 583,702 16,308 - 16,808
Total Current Liabilitics 16,510 3,946,785 2737813 138517 2,876,330
Noncurrent Liabilities &

Bonds payable 27,970,000 - 27,970,000 30,055,000 - 30,055,000
Taotal Noncurre nt Liabilities 27.970,000 - 27,970,060 30,055,000 - 30,055,000
Total Liabilitics 31,900,275 16,510 31916785 32,792,813 138,517 32,931,330
Net Position (Deficit)

Tnvestment in capifal assets 556,357 - 356,357 85,025 - 85,025

Restricted 985,624 5,467,393 6,453,017 369,801 - 7655266 8,025,067

Unrestricted (deficif) (30,177.435) 231,668 (29.945.767) (31,751,056} 231,668 (31,519,388)

Net Position (Deficit)

$  (23409296)

$ (28635454 § 5699061 $  (22936393) § (312962300 § 7,886,934

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial stafements.
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I-195 REDEVELOPMENT DISTRICT
(A COMPONENT UNIT OF THE STATE OF RHODE ISLAND)

STATEMENTS OF REVENUES, EXPENSES AND CHANGES IN NET POSITION
(DEFICIT)

FOR THE YEARS ENDED JUNE 30, 2023 AND 2022

2023 2022
Operating Fund  Project Fund Total Operating Fund  Project T'und Total
Qperating Revennes
Development ¥ 706405 % -~ % 706405 $ 207,158 % - $ 207158
Park sponsorships and
donations 200,000 -- 200,000 300,000 - 300,000
Park assessments 258,720 - 258,120 138,666 - 138,666
Park programming 71,082 - 71,082 56,989 -- 56,989
Total Operating Revenues 1,236,207 - 1,236,207 2,813 - 702,813

Operating Expenses

Project development
icentives - 502,300 502,309
Contractual services 1,192,838 - 1,067,926
Personnel services 641,655 - 693,951
Insurance 83,233 57209 - 57200
Other 327976 65,405 - 65405
Total Operating Expenses 2,245,702 1,884,491 502,309 2,386,800
Gain on Sale of Property 92,011 - - e
Operating Loss (1,181,678) (502,309) {1,683,987)
: Nonoperating Revenues
(Expenses)
State appropriations -
operations 1,350,069 - 1,350,069
State appropriations -
Beach, Clean Water &
Green Economy Bond 118,311 54468 ~n 54 468
Interest income 67,346 88775 - 4,860 4,860
: Interest expense n (1,436,336) (412,820) -- (4128200
Total Nonoperating
Revenues (Expenses), Net 545,628 67,346 612,974 991,717 4,860 996,577
Loss Before Transfers (371,856) (2,187.873) (2,559,729) (189.961) (497.449) (687410)
Other Financing
: Sources (Uses)
Operating Transfets In - - - 100,000 - 100,000
Operating Transfers Out - - e - (100,000) (100,000)
State appropriation -
debt service 3,032,632 - 3,032,632 2,152265 -- 2,152,265
Change in Net Position 2,660,776 (2.187.873) 472,903 2062304 (597.449) 1,464,855

Total Net Position (Deficit)
- Beginning of Year (31,296,230) 7.8806,934 (23,409,296) (33358,534) 8,484,383 (24,874,

151)

Total Net Position (Deficit)

-End of Year $ (28635454) § 5699061 § (22.036393) § (31.296230) § 7886934 § (23409,296)

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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1-195 REDEVELOPMENT DISTRICT
(A COMPONENT UNIT OF THE STATE OF RHODE ISLAND)

STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

FOR THE YEARS ENDED JUNE 30, 2023 AND 2022

2023 2022
Operating Operating
Fund Project Fund Total Fund Project Fund Total

Cash Flows from QOpemting Activities

Receipts from developers and customers $ 1,762,583 % - % 1,762,583 § 608418 § - § 608418

Payments to suppliers (1472931)  (2,377,226)  (3.850,157) (1,738,751)  (405202) (2,143.953)

Payments fo employees (641,655) - (641,655)  (693,951) - (693,951
Net Cash Used in Operating Activitics (352,003)  (2,377,226) _ (3,729229)  (L,824.284)  (405,202) _ (2,229,486)
Cash Flows from Noneapital

Financing Activities

State appropriations 1,896,650 - 1396550 1,291,784 (15964) 1,275,820

Net Cash Provided by (Used in)

Noncapital Financing Activitics 1,896,650 1,291,784 (15,964) 1,275,820

Cash Flows from Capital and
Related Financing Activities

Transfers between fimds - 120,000 (100,000) --
Purclase of property and equipment {471,333) - - --
Sale of land held for sale - (73,500) -- (73,500)
Net Cash (Used in) Provided by Capital
and Related Financing Activities (471,333) (471,333) 26,500 (100,000) (73,500)
t Cash Tows from Tovesting Activities
: Tnterast income 82,113 -- 4,860 4,860
Net Cash Provided by Investing Activities 82,113 - 4,860 4,860

7(2,316,465)  (1221,799)  (506,000)  (516,306)  (1,022,306)
7793785 8639245 1,351,462 _ 8310089 _ 9,661,551
5477318 § TA17446 $  B45462 § 7793783 $ 8,639,245

Net Increase (Decrease) in Cash
Cash - Beginning of Year
Cash - Eud of Year

Cash is reported in the financial statements as fol )
860,192 $ - § 860,199 $ 458853 § - § 458,853

Cash
Cash, restricted 1,079,929 5,477,318 6,557,247 386,609 7,793,783 8,180,392
Total Cash 1540,128 $ 5477318 § 7417446 § 845462 § 7,793,783 § 8639245

Reconciliation of Operating Loss to
Net Cash Used in Operating Activities
Operating loss
Adjustinents to reconcile operating
koss o net cash wsed in operating

$ (917,484) 5 (2,255,219) § (3,172,703) $ (1,181,678) § (502,309) $ (1,683,967

activities:
Noncash kss on property (92,011) - (92,011) -- - -
Accounts receivable (40,518) - (40,518) (111,203) -- (111,203)
Prepaid expenses (2,036) - (2,036) (31,074) - (31,074)
Otler curtent assets (3,714) - (3,714)
Accounts payable and
accrued expenses 136,866 (122,007 14,859 (510,748) 97,107 (413,641}
Uneamed Revenue, Restricted 566,894 o 566,894 10,419 - 10,419
Net Cash Used in Operating Activities $ (352,003 $ (2,377,226) $ (2,729,229) $ (1,824,284} § (405,202) § (2,228.486)
T T T T T Rpplemienial BiECloNare T T T e e
Noncash capital and related
financing activilies:
Travefer from State ofRhode Ishand
for debt service payment $ 3,032,632 § -~ § 3032632 § 2152265 § -- % 2,152,265
Total Norash capital and related
financing activities: % 3,032,632 % -- $ 3032632 § 2,152,265 § -- $ 2,152,265

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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I-195 REDEVELOPMENT DISTRICT
(A COMPONENT UNIT OF THE STATE OF RHODE ISLAND)

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEARS ENDED JUNE 30, 2023 AND 2022

NOTE 1 - DESCRIPTION OF BUSINESS AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

DESCRIPTION OF BUSINESS

The 1-195 Redevelopment District (the “District”) was created by the Rhode Island General
Assembly under Chapter 64 of Title 42 of the General Laws of Rhode Island, The District
constitutes a body corporate and politic and a public instrumentality of the State of Rhode
Island (the “State™) having a distinct legal existence from the State. It is a component unit of
the State for financial reporting purposes. As such, the financial statements of the District will
be included in the State’s comprehensive annual financial r

The District was established in 2011 to oversee, plangit Nent and administer the areas

pe activities. Business-type activities are activities that
y fees charged to external users.

The District uses the e HC resources measurement focus and accrual basis of accounting.
Under the accrual basis, r¢venues are recognized when earned and expenses are recognized
when the liability for goods and services has been incurred, regardless of the timing of the
related cash flows.

The District distinguishes between operating and non-operating revenues and expenses.
Operating revenues and expenses generally result from providing services in connection with
the District’s principal ongoing operations. Operating revenues consist of recognition of
deferred revenue as revenue when predevelopment activities occur, such as application fees,
licensing fees and property assessments for 195 District Park. It also includes building permit
fees collected for projects within the District. Operating expenses include the costs resulting
from services provided and administrative expenses. All other revenues and expenses are
reporied as nonoperating revenues and expenses,

15




I-195 REDEVELOPMENT DISTRICT
(A COMPONENT UNIT OF THE STATE OF RHODE ISLAND)

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEARS ENDED JUNE 30, 2023 AND 2022

NOTE 1 - DESCRIPTION OF BUSINESS AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

FINANCIAL STATEMENT PRESENTATION, MEASUREMENT FOCUS AND BASIS OF ACCOUNTING
{CONTINUED})

When both restricted and unrestricted amounts are available for an expense, it is the District's
practice to use the restricted resources first.

The District reports the following major business-type fun

d”) accounts for financing activities
riations for capital investment and
e [-195 Redevelopment District. As

479318 and $7,793,783, respectively, of
and project financing gaps in accordance with
it Project Fund Act (R.J.G.L. §42-64.24-1) and

funded from $28,000,000 State of Rho
project financing gaps for projects to be I¢
of June 30, 2023 and 2022, the Di
restricted cash available for capif

The preparation of ements in conformity with accounting principles generally
accepted in the United $OT America (“GAAP™) requires management to make estimates
and assumptions that affe€t the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of
contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements, and the reported amounts
of revenues and expenses during the reporting period. Actual results could differ from those

estimates.
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1-195 REDEVELOPMENT DISTRICT
(A COMPONENT UNIT OF THE STATE OF RHODE ISLAND)

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEARS ENDED JUNE 30, 2023 AND 2022

NOTE 1 - DESCRIPTION OF BUSINESS AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

CASH EQUIVALENTS

The District considers all highly liquid investments with a maturity of three months or less
when purchased to be cash equivalents. The District had no cash equivalents at June 30, 2023
and 2022,

RESTRICTED CASH, UNEARNED REVENUE, AND THIRD-PARTESXPENSE REIMBURSEMENT

Restricted cash and unearned revenue represent advaifg to the District by potential
ents for land parcels for
e agreements, potential
fnts to reimburse the District for the
lated to due diligence activities are

District is the primary obligor under
serviges. Amounts previously advanced to
the District are recognized as operating rew ¢ related expenses are incurred.

which the related due diligence activities are in €ss. As part o
purchasers are required to pay the District spectf] by
cost of predevelopment activities, Amounts 1nc
reported as operatmg cxpenses when m )

The Project Fund’s restricted 1ig
creditors, contributo
legislation or lawy d{e]
restricted net ass&Sithat have Begn reduced by liabilities related to the restricted assets.

avorbeen limited to uses specified either externally by
gulations of other governments or internally by enabling

Deferred outflows of resources represent the consumption of net assets that is applicable to a
future reporting period. Deferred inflows of resources represent the acquisition of net assets
that is applicable to a future reporting period. The District had no deferred inflows or outflows
of resources at June 30, 2023 and 2022.

RECLASSIFICATIONS

Certain 2022 financial statement amounts have been reclassified to conform to the 2023
presentation. There is no change in the reported change in net position (deficit).
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I-195 REDEVELOPMENT DISTRICT
(A COMPONENT UNIT OF THE STATE OF RHODE ISLAND)

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEARS ENDED JUNE 30, 2023 AND 2022

NOTE 1 - DESCRIPTION OF BUSINESS AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

Management has evaluated subsequent events through September XX, 2023, which is the date
these financial statements were available to be issued. Other than those events described below
there were no other events requiring recognition or disclosure in the financial statements have
been identified.

The District closed on the sale of Lot 3 of former PRaregl 25 on August 11, 2023. An
approximately 212,000-SF lab facility will be built on. hic paré@hanchored by the Department
of Health State Lab and Brown University with approximately 100.000 SF of lab space for
private industry and academic institutions. ’ 4

NOTE 2 - CASH

Bank balances of the District’s cash, u ' “amounts, consist of the following:

2023 2022

$ 7425715 $ 8,723,186

Bank balance in checking accoll

Insured by federal depasitony i 251,152 251,152
Bank balance uninggifc b 7,174,563 8,472,034
Collateralized - collafer: ‘third-party

custodian in the Comihission§ hame 7,174,563 8,472,034
Uninsured and Uncollater : $ - % -

In accordance with State of Rhode Island General Laws, Chapter 35-10.1, depository
institutions holding deposits of the State, its agencies or governmental subdivisions of the
State, are required, at a minimum, to insure or pledge eligible collateral equal to one hundred
percent of time deposits with maturities greater than sixty days. Any of these institutions which
do not meet minimum capital standards prescribed by federal regulators are required to insure
or pledge eligible collateral equal to one hundred percent of deposits, regardless of maturity.
The District does not have a separate deposit policy for custodial credit risk.
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1-195 REDEVELOPMENT DISTRICT
(A COMPONENT UNIT OF THE STATE OF RHODE ISLAND)

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEARS ENDED JUNE 30, 2023 AND 2022

NOTE 3 — NOTES RECEIVABLES
In June 2023, the District, in relation to the partial sale of Parcel 9, received two promissory
notes from the buyer in the aggregate amount of $99,724. Interest on the notes is 1% per annum
and principal is due upon maturity on June 1, 2043. The balance on the notes including accrued
interest at June 30, 2023 is $99,800

NO'TE 4 — CAPITAL ASSETS

LAND

Land at June 30, 2023 and 2022 was $85,025 and congi

CONSTRUCTION IN PROGRESS

During the year ended Jun
I-195 highway in Providence, RE

, 2023, the Operating Fund sold a portion of Parcel 9 in
,713 and is included in gain on sale of property of $92,011 on
epenses and changes in net position (deficit).

Providence, Rhode Islgnd fc
the statement of revenue

During the year ended June 30, 2022, the Operating Fund acquired abutting property to Parcel
14 in Providence, Rhode Island for $73,500. The land is held for sale.

Land held for sale at June 30, 2023 and 2022 was $468,139 and $475,852, respectively.
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1-195 REDEVELOPMENT DISTRICT
(A COMPONENT UNIT OF THE STATE OF RHODE ISLAND)

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEARS ENDED JUNE 30, 2023 AND 2022

NOTE 6 - BONDS PAYABLE

Economic DEVELOPMENT REVENUE BONDS, 2013 SERIES A

In April 2013, Rhode Island Commerce Corporation issued Economic Development Revenue
Bonds, 2013 Series A, in the aggregaie principal amount of $37,440,000, for which the District
is the obligor. The 2013 Series A Bonds mature in April 2033 and bear interest at the lesser of
the 30-Day LIBOR (5.25688% at June 30, 2023) plus applicable margin, or 7.75%. Applicable
margin is the rate that corresponds to the lesser of the two long-term general obligation bond
ratings of the State from Moody’s Investors Service (“Mafidy’s””) and Standard & Poor’s
(“S&P”) in the following table:

State Bond Rating - S&P/Moody's
AA/Aa2, or higher

AA-fAa3
AHAL 1.37%
1.57%
1.82%

At June 30, 2023, the State)s
Moody’s, respectively. As § ¥ ]
7.26688%. The outstandi ce as of 2013 Series A Bonds was $30,055,0600 and
$31,990,000 as of :
Effective July 1, 20 the 2013 Series A Bonds is amended from 30-Day LIBOR
to the lesser of Adj VSOFR (6.2130% at July 1, 2023) plus applicable margin or
7.75%, Applicable mar e rate that corresponds to the lesser of the two long-term general
obligation bond ratings of the State from Moody’s Investors Service (“Moody’s”) and Standard
& Poor’s (“S&P”) in the table noted above,

UsSE oF PROCEEDS OF BONDS

Proceeds from the 2013 Series A Bonds were transferred by the District to the State,
Simultaneous with the issuance of the 2013 Series A Bonds, the District, the Rhode Island
Commerce Corporation, and Santander Bank (the “Bank™) entered into a bond purchase
agreement under the terms of which the 2013 Series A Bonds were purchased by the Bank.

~=-~The-Bank-holds-a-mandatory-tender-option-to-sell-the-bonds-to-the Rhode-Island Commerce -

Corporation on either April 1, 2023 or April 1, 2028. The tender option was not exercised on
April 1, 2023,
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I-195 REDEVELOPMENT DISTRICT
(A COMPONENT UNIT OF THE STATE OF RHODE ISLAND)

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEARS ENDED JUNE 30, 2023 AND 2022

NOTE 6 - BONDS PAYABLE (CONTINUED)
STATE OF RHODE ISLAND 2013 SERIES A RATE CAP AGREEMENT

Concurrent with the issuance of the 2013 Series A Bonds, the State entered into separate rate
cap transaction agreements with the Bank for each bond series (the “Cap Agreement”). Under
the terms of the Cap Agreement, the State paid the Bank $658,500. In exchange, the Bank
agreed to pay the State interest on a monthly basis at 30-Day LIBOR, fo the extent 30-Day
LIBOR exceeds the interest rate cap, on the notional amount, which mirrors the scheduled
principal balance of the 2013 Series A Bonds, through April 18#023 and was not renewed. The
interest rate under the Cap Agreement is capped at 6.75% ne 30, 2023 and 2022, the fair

Repayment of the 2013 Series A Bonds shall be solg}yifrom i) appropriated funds, if any, made
available and appropriated by the Generglag wthe State for bond payments, but not
for payment of administrative expenses Y
derived from the sale, lease, transfer, con

The District has pledged a
interest, which has been assi

'the bond trustee, in all pledged receipts and all deposits in

it facility funds established with the bond trustee.

To the extent that™l insufficient funds to meet its payment obligations under the
bonds, it shall seek fions from the State; however, there are no assurances that the
State will appropriate a to fund the District’s payment obligations.
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I-195 REDEVELOPMENT DISTRICT
(A COMPONENT UNIT OF THE STATE OF RHODE ISLAND)

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEARS ENDED JUNE 30, 2023 AND 2022

NOTE 6 - BONDS PAYABLE (CONTINUED)
REPAYMENT OF 2013 SERIES A BONDS (CONTINUED)

At June 30, 2023, aggregate scheduled principal and interest payments due on the District’s
bonds, based on rates in effect as of June 30, 2023 and as if the Bank waives its mandatory
tender options, are as follows:

Year Ending June 30, sl rincipal Interest
2024 2,085,000 1,835,476
2025 250,000 1,703,449
2026 £5,000 1,561,016
2027 2,620,000 1,407,400
2028 2,825,000 1,241,513

2029 - 2033 17,850,000 3,222,838

$ 30,055,000 § 10,971,692

e years ended June 30, 2023 and 2022. Bond
principal payments oSS, 0 d $1, 790 000 were made during the years ended June 30,

NOTE 7 - NET POSITION

As of June 30, 2023 and 2022, the net position was as follows:

2023 2022
Operating Operating
Fund Project Fund Total Fund Project Fund Total
Net Position (Deficit)

Investment in

capital assets $ 556357 % - % 556357 § 85025 §$ - % 85,025
Restricted 085,624 5,467,393 6,453,017 369,801 7,655,266 8,025,067

- e o UnrEStECIE < e (B 17T A3S) o 231,668 - - (29,945,767).~~(31,751,056) .- 231,668 (31,519,388).

Total Net Position  $(28,635454) $ 5699061 (22,936,393} $(31296230) $ 7,886034 § (23,400,296)
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I-195 REDEVELOPMENT DISTRICT
(A COMPONENT UNIT OF THE STATE OF RHODE ISLAND)

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEARS ENDED JUNE 30, 2023 AND 2022

NOTE 7 - NET POSITION (CONTINUED)

The restricted net position within the Operating Fund consists of funds, the use of which is
limited by third party agreements. The restricted net position within the Project Fund consists
of amounts limited to use under the Rules and Regulations of the I-195 Redevelopment Project
Fund.

NOTE 8 - CONTRACTUAL SERVICES

Contractual services by category for the years ended June 2023 and 2022, are as follows:

2022
Professional 257 % 627,027
Maintenance 208,644 226,050
Consulting 338,937 214,849

$ 1,192,838 § 1,067,926

NOTE 9 - PROJECT DEVELOP

The I-195 Redevelopie jectiiund Act (RIGL 42-64.24) of 2015 created the Project Fund

institutions or other catdigitigiproject components in accordance with a vision developed by the
District for location on the I-195 land, adjacent and proximate parcels; (2) filling project
financing gaps for real estate projects on the 1-195 land, adjacent and proximate parcels; (3)
financing land acquisition in areas adjacent to and proximate to the I-195 land including street
rights of way and abandonment costs; and (4) financing public infrastructure and public
facilities to support or enhance development including, but not limited to, transportation, parks,
greenways, performance venues, meeting facilities, mecting facilities, and public safety
precincts.”

As of June 30, 2023, the District had received $28 million of which $25.8 million (92%) was
committed, leaving $2.2 million uncommitted. The majority of the Project Fund commitments
have been allocated to Wexford Science and Technology for the first phase of its catalytic
development of an approximately 200,000-SF commercial building that includes tenants such
as Cambridge Innovation Center and Brown’s School of Professional Studies.
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I-195 REDEVELOPMENT DISTRICT
(A COMPONENT UNIT OF THE STATE OF RHODE ISLAND)

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEARS ENDED JUNE 30, 2023 AND 2022

NOTE 9 - PROJECT DEVELOPMENT INITIATIVES (CONTINUED)

Other funded projects consist of a number of infrastructure improvements to support the
District in its preparation to manage and operate 195 District Park, construction of temporary
parking lots to support development projects in and around the District, funds to fill project
financing gaps, purchase of adjacent property, and improvements to property owned by
National Grid located adjacent to the District. The Commission has also allocated some
funding to placemaking and programming initiatives and to support development projects,

Total Amount
Awarded Total Paid
Through June  Remaining

30,2023  Commitment

Wexford and CIC:

Base Building I-195 Incentive $ -- § [,565000 § -
CIC Tenant Improvement Grant 178 - 12,442,178 332,822
CIC Operation Grant 200,000 . 1,200,000 -
District Hall Development & Management Fee : 1,080,000 180,000 1,260,000 540,000
Diistrict Hall Operation Grant 560,600 -- 560,000 --
District Iall FF&E Grant 200,600 -- 200,000 --
Veniure Café Grant 700,000 - 700,000 -
One Ship St 854,976 -- 854,976 145,024

‘Total Wexford and CIC 19,800,000 18,602,154 180,000 18,782,154 1,017,846

Infrastructure Improve

Nationat Grid
Underground wiring 500,000 483,422 -- 483,422 16,578
Transformer sereening and pedest sty 500,000 311,040 63,961 375,001 124,999
Riverwalk and foot bridge ) 735,000 - 626,770 626,770 108,230
Total National Grid 1,735,000 794,462 690,731 1,485,193 249,807
Temporary patking 1,000,000 101,851 - 101,851 898,149
Park strategy development 90,000 90,000 -- 90,000 -
Park strategy development - part 2 75,000 74,930 - 74,930 70
Temporary patking for Point 225 250,000 151,924 -- 151,924 98,076
Parlc trash and recycling receptacles 120,600 107,906 - 107,906 12,094
Park operations and tnaintenance support 100,000 100,000 -- 100,000 -
Total Infrastructure Tmprovements 3,370,600 1,421,073 690,731 2,111,804 1,258,196
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1-195 REDEVELOPMENT DISTRICT

(A COMPONENT UNIT OF THE STATE OF RHODE ISLAND)

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEARS ENDED JUNE 30, 2023 AND 2022

NOTE 9 - PROJECT DEVELOPMENT INITIATIVES (CONTINUED)

Total Amount
Awarded Total Paid
Through June  Paid Through Paidin  ThroughJune  Remaining
30,2023 June30,2022  FY2023 30,2023  Commitment
Placemaking and Programming:
Placenaling iitiative: The Shack 320,000 309,993 309,993 10,007
District support for placemaking 350,000 110,252 350,000 -
Programming - Point 225 156,000 4 41,900 114,100
Total Placemaking and Programming 826,000 0,252 701,893 124,107
Development Project Support & Improvements:
Parcel 28 development - 1,200,000 1,200,000 --
1-195 Redevelopment District Development Plan 64,233 197,461 52,539
Acquite land abutting Parcel 2 - 231,668 168,332

Total Development Project Support & Improvements 1,264,233 1,629,129 220,871

Total Project Fund Initiafives $2,245,216 $23,224,980 $2,621,020

NOTE 10 - STATE APPROS TRANSFERS FROM STATE

0, 2023 and 2022, the District received $1,842,224 and
ropriations by the General Assembly of the State to fund
operatlng expenses Ths ropriations are made relating to the State’s annual budgetary
process and are therefore dependent upon the State’s general financial resources and factors
affecting such resources. The District is dependent upon such annual appropriations to fund its
operating expenses.

During the years ended June 30, 2023 and 2022, the District received $3,032,632 and
$2,152,265, respectively, in transfers from the State to fund debt service. The District is
dependent upon such transfers to fund its debt service on its outstanding bonds.

During the years ended June 30, 2023 and 2022, the District received $118,311 and $54,468,

trespectively, of state appropriations funded by the Beach, Clean Water & Green Economy
Bond.
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I-195 REDEVELOPMENT DISTRICT
(A COMPONENT UNIT OF THE STATE OF RHODE ISLAND)

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEARS ENDED JUNE 30, 2023 AND 2022

NOTE 10 - STATE APPROPRIATIONS AND TRANSFERS FROM STATE (CONTINUED)

The 1-195 Redevelopment Project Fund was established through legislative action under the
jurisdiction of and to be administered by the District to further the goals set forth in Chapter
42-64.14 of the Rhode Island General Laws to promote, among other purposes, the
development and attraction of advanced industries and innovation on and near the I-195 land
to enhance Rhode Island's economic vitality, Expenditures for the years ended June 30, 2023
and 2022 were $2,255,219 and $502,310, respectively. Interest earned for the years ended June
30, 2023 and 2022 were $67,346 and $4,860, respectively. Nejgposition decreased $2,187,873
in 2023 and $597,449 in 2022, respectively.

NOTE 11 - RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

¥'In September 2022, the
ommerce Corporation.

oration was the issuer for the 2013

NoTtE 12 - COMMITMENTS AND C
RISK MANAGEMENT
The District is ex;

casvalty and lialiilj
commercial insur.

¢ compensation claims for which the District carries
ent believes the District has access to sufficient funds for
potential claims, if a Are subject to deductibles or are more than stated coverage
maximums. The District 1§16t aware of any potential claims, Accordingly, the District has not
recorded a reserve for potential claims,

RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES

The District’s operations are exposed to various risks associated with its business as well as
global events, such as a pandemic or international conflict which may impact general economic
conditions. The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles
generally accepted in the United States requires management to consider such risks and make

__estimates and assumptions that affect the amounts reported in the financial statements and

B accompanying notes. Actual results could differ from those estimates.
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I-195 REDEVELOPMENT DISTRICT
(A COMPONENT UNIT OF THE STATE OF RHODE ISLAND)

STATE OF RHODE ISLAND REQUIRED FORM
STATEMENT OF NET POSITION (ATTACHMENT B)

JUNE 30, 2023

Assets

Current Assets
Cash and cash equivalents $ 860,199
Investments -
Receivables (net) 164,755
Restricted assets

Cash and cash equivalents 6,557,247
Investments -
Receivables (net)
QOther assets
Due from primary government
Due from other component units
Due from other governments
Inventories

176,638

Other assets 97,257

Total Current Assets 7,856,096

Noncurrent Assets
Investments
Receivables (net)
Restricted assets
Cash and cash equivalents
Invesiments
Receivables (net)
Otherassets
Due from other compo
Net pension asset
Net OPEB asset --
Capital assets - nondepreciable 1,024,496
Capital assets - depreciable (net} -

Other assets, net of amoriization 99,800
Total Noncurrent Assets 1,124,296
Total Assets b $,980,392

Deferred Quiflows of Resources
Deferred pension amounts $ -
Deferred OPEB amounts -

Other deferred outflows of resources -

See accompanying notes and independent auditors’ report.
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I-195 REDEVELOPMENT DISTRICT
(A COMPONENT UNIT OF THE STATE OF RHODE ISLAND)

STATE OF RHODE ISLAND REQUIRED FORM
STATEMENT OF NET POSITION (ATTACHMENT B) (CONTINUED)

JUNE 30, 2023

Liabilities

Current Liabilities
Cash overdraft $ -
Accounts payable 431,201
Due to ptimaty government -
Due to other component units -
Due to other governments 266,692
Accrued expenses -
Compensated absences '
Unearned revenue
Other current liabilities

583,702
580,190
2,085,000

3,946,785

Cutrent portion of long-term debt
Total Current Liabilities

Noncurrent Liabilities
Due to primary government
Due to other component units
Due to other governments
Net pension liability
Net OPEB liability
Unearned revenue
Notes payable
Loans payable
Obligations under capital leasg
Compensated absences
Bonds payable

Other liabilities

27,970,000

27,970,000
$ 31,916,785

Total Noncurrent Liabilities

Total Liabilities
Deferred inflows of resources
Deferred pension amounts $ -
Deferred OPEB amounts -
Other deferred inflows of resources
Total Deferred Inflows of Resources $ -
Net Position
Net investment in capital assets $ 556,357
Restricted for
Debt
Other 6,453,017
Nonexpendable -
Capital projects -
Unrestricted (29,945,767}

Total Net Position $ (22,936,393)

See accompanying notes and independent auditors’ report.
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I-195 REDEVELOPMENT DISTRICT

(A COMPONENT UNIT OF THE STATE OF RHODE ISLAND)

STATE OF RHODE ISLAND REQUIRED FORM
STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES (ATTACHMENT C)

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2023

Expenses

Program Revenues
Charges for services
Operating grants and contributions
Capital grants and contributions

Total Program Revenues

Net (Expenses) Revenues

General (Expenses) Revenues
Gain on sak of property
Interest and investment earnings

Miscellaneous revenue

Total General Revenues

Special items
Extraordinary items

Change in Net Defi

Total Net Position - Begit

Total Net Position - Ending

§ 5937257

1,036,207
5,193,167

6,229,374

292,117

92,011
88,775

180,736

_—

472,903

(23,409,296)

$ (22,936,393)

See accompanying notes and independent auditors’ report,
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1-195 REDEVELOPMENT DISTRICT
(A COMPONENT UNIT OF THE STATE OF RHODE ISLAND)

STATE OF RHODE ISLAND REQUIRED FORM
SCHEDULE OF BONDS PAYABLE (ATTACHMENT D)

JUNE 30, 2023
Fiscal Year Ending June 30 Principal Interest
2024 $ 2,085000 $ 1,835,476
2025 2,250,000 1,703,449
2026 2,425,000 1,561,016
2027 2,620,000 1,407,400
2028 2,825,000 1,241,513

2029 - 2033

£:7,850,000 3,222,838

80,055,000 $ 10,971,692

See accompanying notes and independent auditors’ report.
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1-195 REDEVELOPMENT DISTRICT

(A COMPONENT UNIT OF THE STATE OF RHODE ISLAND)

STATE OF RHODE ISLAND REQUIRED FORM

SCHEDULE OF CHANGES IN LONG-TERM DEBT (ATTACHMENT E)

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2023

Bonds Payable
Net unamortized premium/discount

Bonds Payable

Notes payable

Loans payable

Obligations inder capital leases
Net pension liability

Net OPEB liability

Due to primary govermment
Due to component units

Due to other governinents and agencies
Uneamed revenue
Compensated absences
Arbifrage rebate

Pollution remediation

Funds held for others

Qther liabilities

Amounts Amounts
Begitning Ending Due Within Due
Balance Additions Balance One Year Thereafler
$ 31,990,000 % 30,055,000 § 2,085,000 § 27970000
31,990,000 30,055,000 2,085,000 27,970,000
583,702 583,702 -
$ 32,006,808 % 583,702 $ (1,951,808) $ 30,638,702 § 2668702 § 27,970,000

See accompanying notes and independent auditors’ report,
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1-195 REDEVELOPMENT DISTRICT
(A COMPONENT UNIT OF THE STATE OF RHODE ISLAND)

SCHEDULE, OF TRAVEL AND ENTERTAINMENT

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2023

Date Payee Amount Purpose

Various Various $ 2,598 Less than $200, travel and entertainment expenses

See accompanying notes and independent auditors’ report,
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER
FINANICAL REPORTING AND ON COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS BASED
ON AN AUDIT OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS PERFORMED IN ACCORDANCE
WITH GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS

To the Board of Commissioners
1-195 Redevelopment District

We have audited, in accordance with the auditing standards g |ly accepted in the United States
of America and the standards applicable to financial audit§ contained in Gove: nment Auditing
Standards issued by the Comptroller General of the United States,

I-195 Redevelopment District (the “District’””) which mbrlse the statéments of net posntlon as of

the District’s internal’ ntrol. Acc”' dmgly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of
the District’s internal cont ol.

A deficiency in internal co;’ﬂ‘b‘f exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow
management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent,
or detect and correct, misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a deficiency, or a
combination of deficiencies, in internal control such that there is a reasonable possibility that a
material misstatement of the financial statements will not be prevented, or detected and corrected
on a timely basis. A significant deficiency is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in
internal control that is less severe than a material weakness, yet important enough to merit attention
by those charged with governance.

Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph
of this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be
material weaknesses or significant deficiencies and therefore, material weaknesses or significant
deficiencies may exist that were not identified. However, material weaknesses or significant
deficiencies may exist that were not identified.
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Report on Compliance and Other Matters

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the District’s financial statements are free
from material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws,
regulations, contracts, and grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have a direct and
material effect on the financial statements. However, providing an opinion on compliance with
those provisions was not an objective of our audit, and accordingly, we do not express such an
opinion. The results of our tests disclosed no instances of noncompliance or other matters that are
required to be reported under Government Auditing Standards.

Purpose of This Report

The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and
compliance and the result of that testing, and not to provide an opjinion on the effectiveness of the
entity’s internal control or on compliance. This report is an int gi'al part of an audit performed in
accordance with Government Auditing Standards in conmder“m he entity’s internal control and
compliance. Accordingly, this communication is not sultable for anyother purpose.

by,

Providence, RI ‘_}’\
September XX, 2023 L W .
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EXHIBIT C
I-195 REDEVELOPMENT DISTRICT
RESOLUTION REGARDING DISTRICT CAPITALIZATION POLICY

September 20, 2023

VOTED: That the Capitalization Policy, a copy of which is attached hereto as Exhibit A,
be and is hereby approved and adopted.




EXHIBIT A

Capitalization i)olicy:

EQUIPMENT - All moveable equipment with a useful life of more than one year and an
acquisition cost of $10,000 or more per unit will be capitalized on a per unit basis. A “unit” is
defined as a piece(s) of equipment that, when assembled, functions as a stand-alone asset, or is an
enhancement to an existing asset. The unit can include installation and accessories costs that are
needed to achieve the full functionality of the asset, if purchased at the same time as the main piece
of equipment. Training, warranty, and setvice plan costs associated with the unit may not be
capitalized.

REAL PROPERTY AND IMPROVEMENTS - All real property acquisitions, building
construction, and/or improvements with a useful life in excess of one year and a cost of $100,000
or more will be capitalized.

LAND IMPROVEMENTS — All land improvements with a useful life in excess of one year and a
cost of $50,000 or more will be capitalized.







